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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, the statements of income,

comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”),
that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by
the Saudi Organisation for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”).

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of professional conduct and ethics, endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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to the shareholders of

Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matier

Valuation of ultimate claim
from insurance contracts

liabilities arising

As at December 31, 2020, outstanding claims,
claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”),
additional premium reserves and other technical
reserves amounted to Saudi Riyals 106.6 million,
Saudi Riyals 76.1 million, Saudi Riyals 14.0
million and Saudi Riyals 6.1 million, respectively.

The estimation of insurance contract liabilities
involves a significant degree of judgement. The
liabilities are based on the best-estimate of the
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled
at the reporting date, whether reported or not,
together with the related claims handling costs.
The Company wuses an external actuary
(“management’s expert”) to provide them with
the estimate of such liabilities. A range of
methods were used to determine these provisions
which were based on a number of explicit or
implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of
claims.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the
valuation of insurance contract liabilities,
including the impact of COVID-19, require the
use of significant judgement and estimates.

Refer to Note 3.8 to the financial statements for
the accounting policy relating to insurance
contract liabilities, Note 4 for the disclosure of
significant accounting estimates and judgements
and Notes 11 and 29.7 for the disclosure of
matters related to insurance contract liabilities.

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

We performed the following procedures:

o Understood, evaluated and tested key
controls around the claims handling and
provision setting processes;

+ Tested the amounts recorded for a sample of
claims notified and paid. On a sample basis,
we also compared the outstanding claims
amounts to the appropriate source
documentation to evaluate the valuation of
outstanding claims;

»  Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s expert based
on their professional qualifications and
experience and assessed their independence;

+  Obtained sufficient audit evidence to assess
the integrity of data used as inputs into the
actuarial valuations, and tested on sample
basis, the accuracy and completeness of
underlying claims data utilised by the
management’s expert in estimating the
IBNR, additional premium reserves and
other technical reserves by verifying it with
the underlying accounting and other records;

» Involved our internal experts to evaluate the

Company’s actuarial practices and related
provisions established and gained comfort
over the actuarial report issued by the
management’s expert. We also performed the
following procedures:

(i) Evaluated whether the Company’s
actuarial methodologies were consistent
with generally accepted actuarial
practices and with prior years. We
sought sufficient justification for any
significant differences;

(i) Assessed key actuarial assumptions
including claims ratios and expected
frequency and severity of claims. We
challenged these assumptions by
comparing them with our expectations
based on the Company’s historical
experience, current trends and our own
industry knowledge; and
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

(iii) Reviewed the appropriateness of the
calculation methods and approach
along with the assumptions used and
sensitivity analysis performed.

e« Our internal experts also performed
independent re-projections on IBNR,
additional premium reserves and other
technical reserves for significant operating
segments to compare them with the amounts
recorded by management and sought to
understand any significant differences; and

»  Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of the related disclosures in Notes 3.8, 4, 11
and 29.7 to the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises information included in the Company’s 2020 annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon, which is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Company’s 2020 annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial

statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA, and the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies
and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



- e PK 5 jbrahim Ahmed Al-Bassam & Co

A Cartilind Public Azempiaots - Al-Sxssam & Co
p"' c L e W dememiber Sren of PEE dndermakinn il
Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued )

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
‘events in 8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. 1

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the-publie-'intgres_t_ benefits of such communieation.
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Investments
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held-to-maturity investments
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Long-term deposits
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Statutory deposit
Accrued income on statutory deposit
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued and other liabilities
Reinsurers’ balances payable
Unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Additional premium reserves
Other technical reserves

Due to a related party

Employee benefit obligations
Zakat payable

Accrued commission income payable to SAMA
Dividend payable

Surplus distribution payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Accumulated losses

Remeasurement reserve of employee benefit
obligations

Fair value reserve on investments

NET EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Note

12
12
12
10

13
14
15
16
16

19

11
20
11
11
11
11
17
21
18
16

25

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
343,337,078 255,104,408
B 120,130,556
63,838,511 94,924,166
18,949,044 15,100,022
26,901,755 70,047,887
12,002,373 13,902,786
9,025,462 11,860,665
44,085,244 39,093,682
100,464,703 98,111,866
- 110,000,000
22,213,192 24,058,296
86,250,000 101,250,000
3,983,519 4,143,639
1,862,987 1,596,438
25,513,750 25,513,750
40,000,000 40,000,000
5:573,503 4,753,639

804,001,121

1,029,591,800

75791,663 5,417,406
29,921,083 32,154,043
2,702,094 5,333,811
171,428,813 230,733,866
3,195,070 2,197,204
106,553,198 169,692,335
76,121,056 63,180,565
14,025,166 17,314,969
6,128,675 2,045,033
1,123,750 1,123,750
9,207,307 9,664,194
46,857,518 45,730,348
5,573,503 4,753,639
370,743 370,743
35,219,225 44,432,361
516,218,864 634,144,267

400,000,000

400,000,000

- 47,342,202
(122,571,875) (57,434,850)
2,296,547 471,446
8,057,585 5,068,735
287,782,257 395,447,533

804,001,121

1,029,591,800

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF INCOME

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

REVENUES
Gross premiums written
Reinsurance premiums ceded:
- Foreign
- Local
Excess of loss premiums:
- Foreign
- Local
Net premiums written

Changes in unearned premiums
Changes in reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
Net premiums earned

Reinsurance commissions
Total revenues

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Claims handling expenses

Net claims and other benefits paid

Changes in outstanding claims

Changes in reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

Changes in claims incurred but not reported

Changes in reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but
not reported

Net claims and other benefits incurred

Policy acquisition costs

Changes in additional premium reserves
Changes in other technical reserves
Other underwriting expenses, net

Total underwriting costs and expenses, net
NET UNDERWRITING LOSS

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

9]

)]

)]

20

1
11
11

11

11
11

27

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019
379,113,658 455,702,761
(37,499,244) (31,095,749)

(2,415,663) (1,379,520)
(21,292,607) (32,259,289)
(3,738,264) (4,733,717)
314,167,880 386,234,486
59,305,053 (47,854,109)
3,849,022 2,248,334
377,321,955 340,628,711
6,315,317 4,769,343
383,637,272 345,398,054
(495,300,165) (315,173,583)
85,390,184 32,814,789
(17,035,819) (15,015,459)
(426,945,800) (297,374,253)
63,139,137 (26,362,098)
(43,146,132) 25,988,451
(12,940,491) (24,046,174)
(1,900,413) (2,488,670)
(421,793,699) (324,282,744)
(23,345,148) (26,401,175)
3,289,803 7,396,184
(4,083,642) 1,580,874
(9,619,698) _(6,114,198)
(455,552,384) (347,821,059)
(71,915,112) (2,423,005)
(Continued)



AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF INCOME (continued)

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSES) INCOME

Allowance for doubtful debts

General and administrative expenses

Investment and commission income

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - net

Realized gain on available-for-sale investments

Reversal of surplus distribution payable

Other income

Total other operating expenses, net

Total loss for the year before surplus
attribution and zakat

Surplus attributed to the insurance operations
Total loss for the year before zakat

Zakat expense

Total loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders

Weighted average number of outstanding
shares

Loss per share (expressed in Saudi Riyals per
share)
Basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share

Note

26

12
12

25

30

18

22

24
24

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019
(83,258) (9,848,364)
(69,380,570) (58,467,954)
12,510,552 23,433,174
6,156,992 1,099,661
2,419,474 3,174,967
9,187,005 -
5,125,690 2,270,215
(34,064,115) (37,438,301)
(105,979,227) (39,861,306)
(105,979,227) (39,861,306)
(6,500,000) (8,400,000)
(112,479,227) (48,261,306)
40,000,000 40,000,000
(2.81) (1.21)

(2.81) (1.21)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.




AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Year ended December 31,

Note 2020 2019

Total loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders (112,479,227) (48,261,306)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Items that will not be reclassified to the
statement of income in subsequent years

Re-measurement gain (loss) on employee benefit
obligations 21 1,825,101 (89,745)

Items that will be reclassified to the statement
of income in subsequent years

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments 12 2,988,850 1,004,618

Total other comprehensive income 4,813,951 1,814,873

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
YEAR (107,665,276) (46,446,433)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total loss for the year before surplus attribution and
zakat (105,979,227) (39,861,306)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 13 1,248,563 1,353,200
Amortization of intangible assets 14 654,344 471,061
Provision for employee benefit obligations 21 2,472,668 2,345,910
Changes in fair value on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 12 (6,156,992) (1,999,661)
Realized gain on available-for-sale investments 12 (2,419,474) (3,174,967)
Realized gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 12 (1,109,408) -
Reversal of surplus distribution payable (9,187,005) -
Allowance for doubtful debts 8 83,258 9,848,364
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Unearned premiums 11 (59,305,053) 47,854,109
Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net 8 27,979,416 (11,829,676)
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 11 (3,849,022) (2,248,334)
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 11 43,146,132 (25,988,451)
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 11 1,900,413 2,488,670
Deferred policy acquisition costs 9 2,835,203 655,627
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10 1,845,104 (2,453,385)
Accounts payable 2,374,257 98,195
Accrued and other liabilities 19 (1,061,110) 6,451,472
Reinsurers’ balances payable (2,631,717) (2,523,744)
Unearned reinsurance commission 20 997,866 447,162
Outstanding claims 11 (61,314,137) 26,362,098
Claims incurred but not reported 11 12,940,491 24,046,174
Additional premium reserves 11 (3,289,803) (7,396,184)
Other technical reserves 11 4,083,642 (1,580,874)
Employee benefit obligations paid 21 (1,104,454) (1,586,706)
Zakat paid 18 (5,372,830) (4,940,173)
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 819,864 1,285,523
Surplus distribution payable to policyholders 25 - (64,199)
Net cash (utilized in) generated from
operating activities (159,399,011) 18,060,805
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Liquidation of short-term deposits 170,130,556 371,576,871
Placement in short-term deposits (50,000,000) (358,451,356)
Statutory deposit commission income (819,864) (1,285,523)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 12 (285,113) (68,625,000)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments 12 (42,991,081) (32,550,993)
Purchase of property and equipment 13 (1,088,443) (1,237,290)
Purchase of intangible assets 14 (920,893) (1,308,870)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments 12 43,407,843 31,566,662
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 12 5,198,676 10,862,283
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity investments 12 110,000,000 -
Liquidation of long-term deposits 15,000,000 -
Net cash generated from (utilized in) investing
activities 247,631,681 (49,453,216)

, .




AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Supplemental non-eash information:

Net change in fair value reserve for available-for-sale
investments

Surplus distribution payable adjusted against:

- Insurance premium receivable from policyholders

- VAT receivable on unearned premium

- Insurance premium receivable from related parties

Settlement of premium receivable from a shareholder
through rent due to them

Settlement of premium receivable from a shareholder
against outstanding claims due to the shareholder

Re-measurement (gain) loss on employee benefit
obligations

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

13

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019

88,232,670 (31,392,411)
255,104,408 286,496,819
6 _ 343,337,078 255,104,408
12 2.988,850 1,904,618
26,131 363,277
- 862,600
- 85,148
1,171,850 1,082,572
1,825,000 -

21 1,825,101 (89,745)




AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1. General - Legal status and principal activities

Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company") is a Saudi Joint Stock Company established
in Dammam, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and incorporated on 26 Muharram 1429H (corresponding to
February 4, 2008) under commercial registration (“CR") number 1010243765 which was later amended
to 2051036871 dated 22 Rabi' I 1429H (corresponding to March 30, 2008). The Company has been
licensed to conduct cooperative insurance business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under cooperative
principles in accordance with Royal Decree number 60/M dated 18 Ramadan 1427H (corresponding to
October 11, 2006), pursuant to Council of Ministers resolution number 233 dated 16 Ramadan 1427H
(corresponding to October 9, 2006). The Company’s registered address is P.O. Box 3501, Dammam
32241, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The purpose of the Company is to transact in cooperative insurance and reinsurance operations and all
related activities in accordance with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (the “Law") and its implementing regulations. The Company obtained license
from the Saudi Central Bank (formerly known as Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (“SAMA”) to
practice general and health insurance and reinsurance business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia vide
license number TMN/13/20083, dated 23 Rabi' I 1429H (corresponding to March 31, 2008). The
Company commenced insurance operations on 4 Muharram 1430H (corresponding to January 1, 2009).
On 11 Ramadan 1436H (corresponding to June 28, 2015), the Company received approval from SAMA
to cancel its reinsurance license.

The loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 is mainly attributable to the substantial increase in the
medical claims. Management has formulated and implemented measures which, among others, include
better pricing strategies and diversification of insurance portfolio. Results from such measures are
expected to reflect positively in the year 2021 and such positive trend as a result of corrective measures
is expected to continue, provided that the underlying projections of the business and economic
conditions continue to be realized.

On 29 Dhul Qada 1442H (corresponding to July 20, 2020), the Board of Directors of the Company
resolved to utilise the statutory reserve amounting to Saudi Riyals 47.3 million to absorb a portion of
the accumulated losses of the Company. On 29 Muharram 1442H (corresponding to September 17,
2020), the Company received SAMA’s approval in relation to the utilisation of statutory reserve to
absorb the accumulated losses. The Company’s shareholders, in an ordinary general assembly meeting
held on 10 Rabi’l 1442H (corresponding to October 27, 2020), approved the Board of Directors’
recommendation to utilise the statutory reserve to absorb a portion of the accumulated losses. The
impact of such adjustment to the statutory reserve has been reflected in the accompanying financial
statements.

The Company operates through three main branches and various point-of-sale stores located in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Following are the CR numbers of three branches:

Branch Name Location CR number
Regional Branch Dammam 2051036871
Regional Branch Jeddah 4030182618
Regional Branch Riyadh 1010243765
2, Basis of preparation

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization
for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”).
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY - T

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2, Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) Statement of compliance (continued)

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of
accounts for Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial statements
accordingly. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly attributable to either activity are recorded
in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of expenses from joint operations is determined and
approved by the management and the Board of Directors of the Company.

In accordance with the requirements of Implementing Regulation for Co-operative Insurance
Companies (the “Regulations”) issued by SAMA and as per by-laws of the Company, shareholders of the
Company are to receive 90% of the annual surplus from insurance operations and the policyholders are
to receive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising from insurance operations is transferred to the
shareholders’ operations in full.

The statements of financial position, income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance
operations and shareholders’ operations which are presented in Note 30 to the financial statements have
been provided as supplementary financial information and to comply with the requirements of the
guidelines issued by SAMA implementing regulations. SAMA implementing regulations require the
clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and the
shareholders’ operations. Accordingly, the statements of financial position, income, comprehensive
income and cash flows prepared for the insurance operations and shareholders’ operations as referred
to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the
respective operations.

In preparing the Company’s financial statements in compliance with IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, the balances and transactions of the insurance operations are amalgamated and
combined with those of the shareholders’ operations. Inter-operation balances, transactions and
unrealized gains or losses, if any, are eliminated in full during amalgamation. The accounting policies
adopted for the insurance operations and shareholders’ operations are uniform for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances.

®) Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and the historical cost
convention, except as described in Note 3.

© Basis of presentation

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-current
classification. However, the following balances would generally be classified as current: cash and cash
equivalents, short-term deposits, premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net, prepaid expenses
and other assets, available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
accrued income on statutory deposit, accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities, reinsurers’
balances payable, due to a related party, outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”),
additional premium reserves, other technical reserves, zakat payable, accrued commission income
payable to SAMA, dividend payable and surplus distribution payable. The following balances would
generally be classified as non-current: long-term deposits, held-to-maturity investments, property and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, statutory deposit and employee benefit obligations. The balances
which are of mixed in nature i.e. include both current and non-current portions include reinsurers’ share
of unearned premiums, deferred policy acquisition costs, unearned premiums and unearned
reinsurance commission.
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“*AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY g
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
2. Basis of preparation (continued)

d Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“Saudi Riyals”) which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Company.

(e) Seasonality of operations
There are no seasonal changes that may affect the insurance operations of the Company.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are consistently
applied for all years presented.

3.1  New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to existing standards which have been issued but not yet effective and is currently assessing
their impact.

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”)

This standard was published on July 24, 2014 and has replaced IAS 39. The new standard addresses the
following items related to financial instruments:

a) Classification and measurement:

IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is
measured at amortized cost if both:

i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”).

The financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and realized gains or
losses would be recycled through profit or loss upon sale, if both conditions are met:

1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and for sale; and
i. the contractual terms of cash flows are SPPI.

Assets not meeting either of these categories are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Additionally, at initial recognition, an entity can use the option to designate a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

For equity instruments that are not held for trading, an entity can also make an irrevocable election to

present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments
(including realized gains and losses), dividends being recognized in profit or loss.
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY 2

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company
(continued)

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) (continued)

a) Classification and measurement (continued):

Additionally, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss.

b) Impairment:

The impairment model under IFRS g reflects expected credit losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses
under IAS 39. Under the IFRS 9 approach, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

c) Hedge accounting:

IFRS g introduces new requirements for hedge accounting that align hedge accounting more closely with
Risk Management. The requirements establish a more principles-based approach to the general hedge
accounting model. The amendments apply to all hedge accounting with the exception of portfolio fair
value hedges of interest rate risk (commonly referred to as “fair value macro hedges”). For these, an
entity may continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements currently in IAS 39. This exception was
granted largely because the IASB is addressing macro hedge accounting as a separate project.

Effective date

The published effective date of IFRS 9 was January 1, 2018. However, amendments to IFRS 4 - Insurance
Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 with IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts (“IFRS 4”), published on September 12,
2016, changes the existing IFRS 4 to allow entities issuing insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS
4 to mitigate certain effects of applying IFRS g before the IASB’s new insurance contract standard (IFRS
17 - Insurance Contracts) becomes effective. The amendments introduce two alternative options:

1. apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 until the earlier of:
a. the effective date of a new insurance contract standard; or

b. annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Additional disclosures related
to financial assets are required during the deferral period. This option is only available to entities
whose activities are predominately connected with insurance and have not applied IFRS ¢
previously; or

2. adopt IFRS 9 but, for designated financial assets, remove from profit or loss the effects of some of
the accounting mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contract standard is
implemented. During the interim period, additional disclosures are required.

The Company has performed a detailed assessment during 2019:

i)  the carrying amount of the Company’s liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of
IFRS 4 (including deposit components or embedded derivatives unbundled from insurance
contracts) were compared to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities; and
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company
(continued)

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) (continued)
Effective date (continued)

ii) the total carrying amount of the Company’s liabilities connected with insurance were
compared to the carrying amount of all its liabilities. As of 1 April 2016, the Company’s
liabilities connected with insurance were 93% of all of its liabilities, and based on such
assessment, the Company determined that it is eligible for the temporary exemption.
Consequently, the Company has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS 9 until the
effective date of IFRS 17. Disclosures related to financial assets required during the deferral
period are included in the Company’s financial statements.

Impact assessment

As at December 31, 2020, the Company has total financial assets and insurance related assets amounting
to Saudi Riyals 773.1 million and Saudi Riyals 263.5 million, respectively (2019: Saudi Riyals 1,001.0
million and Saudi Riyals 213.1 million, respectively). Currently, financial assets held at amortized cost
consists of loans and receivables (i.e cash and cash equivalents, short and long-term deposits, premiums
and insurers’ balances receivable, reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, reinsurers’ share of claims
incurred but not reported and other assets), and held to maturity investments amounting to Saudi Riyals
628.5 million (2019: Saudi Riyals 864 million). Financial assets held at amortised cost are expected to
meet the SPPI test as required by IFRS 9, and the Company expects to measure such assets at amortised
cost.

Fair value of unit linked investments held at fair value through profit or loss as at December 31, 2020 is
Saudi Riyals 100.5 million (2019: Saudi Riyals 98.1 million). Other financial assets consist of available-
for-sale investments measured at fair value, of Saudi Riyals 44.1 million (2019: Saudi Riyals 39.1 million)
with net increase in fair value during the year of Saudi Riyals 3.0 million (2019: net increase of Saudi
Riyals 1.9 million). The Company expects to use the FVOCI classification for these financial assets based
on the business model of the Company for debt securities and strategic nature of equity investments.
However, the Company is yet to perform a detailed assessment to determine whether the debt securities
meet the SPPI test as required by IFRS 9.

Credit risk exposure, concentration of credit risk and credit quality of these financial assets are
mentioned in Note 29.9 to the financial statements.

The Company’s financial assets have low credit risk as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The above is
based on high-level impact assessment of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently
available information and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company in the future. Overall, the
Company expects some effect of applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9. However, the impact
of the same is not expected to be significant. At present, it is not possible to provide reasonable estimate
of the effects of application of this new standard as the Company is yet to perform a detailed review.

- IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’

Querview

This standard has been published in May 2017. It establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 - Insurance
contracts.

The new standard applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts and to investment
contracts with discretionary participating features, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts.
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company
(continued)

- IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (continued)

Querview (continued)

It requires to separate the following components from insurance contracts:

1. embedded derivatives, if they meet certain specified criteria;
il distinct investment components; and
iii. any promise to transfer distinct goods or non-insurance services.

These components should be accounted for separately in accordance with the related standards (IFRS 9
and IFRS 15).

Measurement

In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which permitted insurers to continue to use the accounting
policies for measurement purposes that existed prior to January 2015, IFRS 17 provides the following
different measurement models:

The General Measurement Model (“GMM?”)

GMM is based on the following “building blocks”:
a) the fulfilment cash flows (FCF), which comprise:
- probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows;
- an adjustment to reflect the time value of money (i.e. discounting) and the financial risks
associated with those future cash flows; and
- arisk adjustment for non-financial risk.

b) the Contractual Service Margin (“CSM”). The CSM represents the unearned profit for a group of
insurance contracts and will be recognized as the entity provides services in the future. The CSM cannot
be negative at inception; any net negative amount of the fulfilment cash flows at inception will be
recorded in profit or loss immediately.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period the carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts is
remeasured to be the sum of:

- the liability for remaining coverage, which comprises the FCF related to future services and the

CSM of the group at that date; and
- the liability for incurred claims, which is measured as the FCF related to past services allocated
to the group at that date.

The CSM is adjusted subsequently for changes in cash flows related to future services but the CSM
cannot be negative, changes in future cash flows that are greater than the remaining CSM are recognized
in profit or loss.

The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, determined by an accounting policy choice.

Interest is also acereted on the CSM at rates locked in at initial recognition of a contract (i.e. discount
rate used at inception to determine the present value of the estimated cash flows). Moreover, the CSM
will be released into profit or loss based on coverage units, reflecting the quantity of the benefits
provided and the expected coverage duration of the remaining contracts in the group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company
(continued)

- IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (continued)

Measurement (continued)

The Variable Fee Approach (“VFA”)

VFA is a mandatory model for measuring contracts with direct participation features (also referred to as
‘direct participating contracts’). This assessment of whether the contract meets these criteria is made at
inception of the contract and not reassessed subsequently. For these contracts, in addition to the
adjustment under GMM, CSM is also adjusted for:

i. the entity’s share of the changes in the fair value of underlying items; and
ii. the effect of changes in the time value of money and in financial risks not relating to the
underlying items.

Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA”)

PAA, a simplified approach, is permitted for the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage if
it provides a measurement that is not materially different from the GMM for a group of contracts or if
the coverage period for each contract in the group is one year or less. With the PAA, the liability for
remaining coverage corresponds to premiums received at initial recognition less insurance acquisition
cash flows. The GMM remains applicable for the measurement of the liability for incurred claims.
However, the entity is not required to adjust future cash flows for the time value of money and the effect
of financial risk if those cash flows are expected to be paid / received in one year or less from the date
the claims are incurred.

Effective date

The IASB issued an Exposure Draft Amendments to IFRS 17 during June 2019 and received comments
from various stakeholders. The IASB is currently re-deliberating issues raised by stakeholders. For any
proposed amendments to IFRS 17, the IASB will follow its normal due process for standard-setting. The
effective date of IFRS 17 and the deferral of the IFRS ¢ temporary exemption in IFRS 4, is currently
January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted if both IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments have also been applied. The Company intends to apply
the standard on its effective date.

Transition

Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance
contracts is impracticable, then the entity is required to choose either a modified retrospective approach
or a fair value approach.

Presentation and Disclosures

The Company expects that the new standard will result in a change to the accounting policies for
insurance contracts and reinsurance, together with amendments to presentation and disclosures.
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company
(continued)

- IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (continued)

Impact

The Company is currently in design phase of IFRS 17 implementation which requires developing and
designing new processes and procedures for the business including any system developments required
under IFRS 17 and detailed assessment of business requirements. Following are the main areas under
design phase and status of the progress made so far by the Company:

Major areas of design phase Summary of progress

Governance and control framework The Company has put in place a comprehensive
IFRS 17 governance program which includes
establishing oversight steering committee for
monitoring the progress of implementation and
assigning roles and responsibilities to various
stakeholders.

Operational area The Company is in progress of designing
operational aspects of the design phase which
includes establishing comprehensive data policy
and data dictionary. Also, the Company is
finalizing architectural designs for various
sub-systems. The Company has progressed
through assessment of business requirements
and has selected IFRS 17 solution and has
developed system implementation plan with a
vendor along with high level timelines, while
finalizing various process needed for transition
and assessment of new resources needed.

Technical and financial area The Company has completed various policy
papers encompassing various technical and
financial matters after concluding on policy
decisions required under the IFRS 17 standard.
The policy decisions are taken after due
deliberations among various stakeholders.
Currently majority of policy papers have been
approved by the Company's IFRS 17 project
steering committee.

Assurance plan The Company is working along with other
stakeholders to finalize the assurance plan for
transitional and post-implementation periods.

3.1.1  Other amendments to standards

Certain other amendments to standards became applicable for the current reporting period. The
Company did not have to change its accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result
of adopting these amendments to standards.

There are no other IFRSs or International Financing Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee

(IFRS - IC) interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Company.
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(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Revenue recognition

3.2.1 Recognition of premium and reinsurance commissions

Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of income over the terms of the policies to
which they relate on a pro-rata basis. The portion of premiums, reinsurance share of premiums and
reinsurance commissions that will be earned in the future is reported as unearned premiums and
unearned reinsurance commissions, respectively, and is deferred based on the following methods:

- Premium written in last three months of the period in respect of marine cargo;

- Pre-defined calculation for engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend
beyond a single year. In accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are earned in the first
year which gradually increase towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

- Actual number of days for other lines of business.

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period of
coverage. The change in the provision for unearned premium is taken to the statement of income in the
same order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.

3.2.2 Commission, dividend income and other income

Commission income on short-term deposits and long-term deposits is recognized on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest rate method and are disclosed under ‘Investment and commission
income’ in statement of income. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive a dividend is
established, and is included under realised gain on available-for-sale investments in the statement of
income. Income from Al Manafeth third party liability insurance fund and Umrah product medical,
general and accident insurance fund, is recognized as other income on the basis of quarterly financial
statements released by their Fund Manager i.e. The Company for Cooperative Insurance.

3.3 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline,
the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits that would be
paid if the insured event arose, with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

3.4 Claims

Claims comprise of amounts payable to policyholders and related loss adjustment expenses, net of
salvage and other recoveries, and are charged to statement of income as incurred.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, whether reported or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as at reporting date are
made on the basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based on management’s
judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but
not reported at the statement of financial position date. The ultimate liability may be in excess of or less
than the amount provided.

Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements in the following year is
included in the underwriting account for that year. The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis
and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separately. The Company does not discount its liabilities
for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement of
financial position date.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5 Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell assets (usually damaged) acquired in settling a
claim (for example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding
claims liability. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of
damaged assets.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the
outstanding claims liability. The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from
the action against the liable third party.

3.6 Reinsurance

The Company’s reinsurance program is affected through proportional, non-proportional and facultative
placements based on the Company’s net retention policy, treaty limits, nature and size of the risks. The
Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its products. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with reinsurance contracts.

An impairment review is performed at each statement of financial position date or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective
evidence exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract
and when the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured
reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the
product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to
reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are determined in a manner consistent with the associated
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Claims recoveries receivable from the reinsurers are recognised as an asset at the same time as the
claims which give rise to the right of recovery are also recognised as a liability and are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered.

3.7 Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability
adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and
deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating
to the relevant insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the
unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised
in the statement of income by setting up a provision.
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3. Summanry of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.8 Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, claims incurred but not reported
(“IBNR”) provision, the provision for unearned and additional premium reserve (including premium
deficiency reserves) and other technical reserves. The outstanding claims provision and IBNR provision
are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date,
whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected
value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of
certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty at the
reporting date. The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim
projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions. The liability is not discounted
for the time value of money. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires,
is discharged or is cancelled.

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable that
relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to account as premium income
over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the
contract. At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition
costs over unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows
after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant
insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned
premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the deficiency-is recognised in the
statement of income by setting up a provision for premium deficiency under “additional premium
reserves”. Other technical reserves comprise unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve and
proportional and non-proportional reinsurance accrual reserve. Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserve is determined at the end of each reporting period and represents the estimated cost of claims
processing that the Company would incur at the time of claims payout. Reinsurance accrual reserve
(proportional and non-proportional) are reserves measured as the amount of reinsurance premiums,
reinsurance commissions or any loss participations that have not been fully accrued.

3.9 Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are
deferred and amortized over the terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate, similar to
premiums earned. All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Amortization
is recorded in the “Policy acquisition costs” in the statement of income.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change
in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realized,
the amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment
write-offs in the statement of income. Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the liability
adequacy test at each reporting date.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.10 Unearned reinsurance commission income

Reinsurance commission income on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over
the terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate, similar to premiums earned. Amortization is
recorded in the statement of income.

3.11  Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net

Premiums and insurers’ receivable are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are stated at gross less allowance for any
uncollectable amount (allowance for doubtful debts) and any impairment in value. Bad debts are written
off as incurred. The carrying value of premiums receivable and reinsurance receivable is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the statement of income. Premiums receivable and
reinsurance receivable are derecognized when the de-recognition criteria for financial assets have been
met.

3.12 Financial assets

3.12.1 Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market other than those that the Company intends to sell in the short-term or
that it has designated as available-for-sale investments. Receivables arising from insurance contracts
are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of
loans and receivables.

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those investments that upon initial recognition
are designated at fair value. Such investments are measured and carried at fair value with all changes in
fair value being recorded in the statement of income.

© Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are those investments that are not held-to-maturity nor held for trading.

Investments which are classified as "available-for-sale" are subsequently measured at fair value. For an
available-for-sale investment where the fair value has not been hedged, any unrealized gain or loss
arising from a change in its fair value is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income
until the investment is derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income should be included in the statement of income
for the year. Available-for-sale investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at
amortized cost less impairment provision.

(d) Held-to-maturity investinents

Investments, which have fixed or determined payments and the Company has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity are classified under this category. These investments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition. Any gain or loss on such investments is
recognised in the statement of income when the investment is derecognized or impaired.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (continued)
3.12.2 Recognition, measurement and de-recognition

Loans and receivable and investments held-to-maturity are carried at amortized costs less provision for
impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition. Any gain or loss on such investments is recognised in the statement of income when the
investment is derecognised or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured and carried at fair value. Any
subsequent changes to the fair value are included in the statement of income.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from those assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Purchases and sale of available-for-sale investments are recognised on the trade-date, which is the date
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment. Available-for-sale investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition
and are subsequently carried at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income. When available-for-sale investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the statement of income as ‘gains and losses from
available-for-sale investments’.

3.12.3 Determination of fair values

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If there is no
active market for a financial asset, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants. Dividends on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale investments are recognised in the statement of income, when the
Company’s right to receive payments is established.

3.12.4 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and

impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event (or events)

has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the statement of income.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.12 Financial assets (continued)

3.12.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss.
Impairment loss or its reversal is recognized in the statement of income.

(© Available-for-sale investments

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is an objective
evidence of impairment resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss.

The cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in statement of comprehensive
income is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of income. If in a subsequent period the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

3.13 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective commission rate method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statements of
income.

3.14 Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date
(i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are transactions that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

3.15 Off-setting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income
and expense are not off-set in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting
standard or interpretation.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments, if any, with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.17 Short-term and long-term deposits

Short-term deposits comprise of time deposits with banks with maturity periods of more than three
months and less than one year from the date of acquisition. Long-term deposits represent time deposits
with maturity periods of more than one year from the date of placement.

3.18 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Leasehold improvements principally represent movable structures that can be relocated without
incurring any substantial cost and effort. Assets in the course of construction or development are
capitalised in the capital work-in-progress account. The asset under construction or development is
transferred to the appropriate category in property and equipment, once the asset is in a location and /
or condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
cost of an item of capital work-in-progress comprises its purchase price, construction / development
costs and any other directly attributable costs to the construction or acquisition of an item of capital
work-in-progress intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.

3.19 Goodwill

Goodwill represents excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration payable, as per SAMA’s
instructions, over the net identifiable assets acquired from Al Sagr Saudi Insurance Company (a sister
company). The recoverability of goodwill is tested at each statement of financial position date for
impairment or more frequently when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.

3.20 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software and are measured at cost. Intangible assets with a finite
useful life are amortised over their estimated useful life in accordance with the pattern of expected
consumption of economic benefits. Estimated useful life of software is 4 years. Intangible assets with an
infinite useful life (including goodwill) are not subject to amortisation but are tested for impairment at
each statement of financial position date or more often if there is an indication of impairment. Intangible
assets with a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Amortisation expense is included in ‘General
and administrative expenses’ under statement of income.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.21 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU, to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. Impairment losses
are recognised in the statement of income.

3.22 Provisions and other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past
events, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses. Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the
future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier or not.

3.23 Employee benefit obligations

The Company operates a single post-employment benefit scheme of defined benefit plan driven by the
labor laws and workman laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia which is based on most recent salary and
number of service years.

The post-employment benefits plans is not funded. Accordingly, valuations of the obligations under the
plan are carried out by an independent actuary based on the projected unit credit method. The costs
relating to such plans primarily consist of the present value of the benefits attributed on an equal basis
to each year of service and the interest on this obligation in respect of employee service in previous years.

Current and past service costs related to post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in the
statement of income and while unwinding of the liability at discount rates used are recorded in the
statement of income. Any changes in net liability due to actuarial valuations and changes in assumptions
are taken as re-measurement in the statement of comprehensive income.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income and transferred to
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity in the period in which they occur.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of income as past service costs. End of service
payments are based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service,
as stated in the labor law of Saudi Arabia.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3.25 Zakat

The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the GAZT. Zakat, for the Company
is calculated based on higher of approximate zakat base and adjusted net income. Additional amounts,
if any, are accounted for when determined to be required for payment. Zakat is accrued on a quarterly
basis.

3.26 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date.
All differences, except for those arising on available-for-sale financial assets, are taken to the statement
of income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently
restated. As the Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dollars which is pegged to
Saudi Riyal, foreign exchange gains and losses are not significant.

3.27 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use (“RoU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of
twelve months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability, if any, is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest rate method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related RoU
asset) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate;

. the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is
used); and
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3.27 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

. a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate.

The RoU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

RoU assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term or the economic useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the RoU asset
reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related RoU asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.

The RoU assets, if any, are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Company applies IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether a RoU asset is impaired and
accounts for any identified impairment loss.

Based on the impact assessment performed by management, the identified impact from the adoption of
IFRS 16 was not material and, hence, no adjustments were recognised by management in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Company has used exemption available in IFRS 16 - Leases, for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. These are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of income and
amounted to Saudi Riyals 2.7 million and Saudi Riyals 3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

4. Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Company makes estimates and judgments concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) declared the Coronavirus (“Covid-19”)
outbreak as a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread globally. This outbreak has also affected the
GCC region including the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments all over the world have taken steps to
contain the spread of Covid-19. The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia also implemented a number of measures
including closure of borders, released social distancing guidelines and enforced country-wide lockdowns
and curfews, which were subsequently lifted from June 21, 2020 owing to the drop in daily cases across
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

In response to the spread of Covid-19 in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and its consequential disruption
to social and economic activities, the Company’s management has assessed its impact on the Company’s
operations and has taken a series of proactive and preventive measures to ensure:

- the health and safety of its employees and the wider community where it is operating; and
- the continuity of its business throughout the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is protected and remains intact.

The estimates that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next twelve-month period are discussed below:
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4. Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
(i) Impact of Covid-19

Medical technical reserves

The Company’s management believes that the Saudi Arabian government initiative of providing free
healthcare to infected and suspected patients has helped in reducing any unfavourable impact. During
the period of lockdowns and curfews as implemented by the Saudi Arabian government, the Company
experienced a decline in medical reported claims (mainly elective and non-chronic treatment claims)
which resulted in a decrease in claims experience which could have resulted from the deferral of certain
medical treatments. Accordingly, the Company’s management has duly considered the impact of such
deferral of medical claims in the current estimate of future contractual cashflows of the insurance
contracts in force as at December 31, 2020 for its liability adequacy test. Based on the results, the
management believes that no additional IBNR is required to be maintained as at December 31, 2020,
for the issued medical policies to account for the above explained deferral (December 31, 2019: Nil,
September 30, 2020: IBNR of Saudi Riyals 3.1 million, June 30, 2020: additional premium reserves of
Saudi Riyals 9.7 million, March 31, 2020: Nil).

Motor technical reserves

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, SAMA issued a circular 189 (the “Circular”) dated May 8, 2020
to all insurance companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Amongst other things, the Circular
instructed the insurance companies to extend the period of validity of all existing retail motor insurance
policies by two months as well as providing two months of additional coverage for all new retail motor
insurance policies written within one month of the date of the Circular.

Management, in conjunction with its appointed actuary, deliberated on a variety of internal factors and
the Company prospectively assessed the sufficiency of its unexpired risk reserves in relation to those
existing retail motor policies impacted by the Circular. For new retail motor policies issued as per the
above Circular, the premium is earned over the period of twelve months as the impact of earnings over
the period of coverage i.e. fourteen months is not considered significant by management for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and subsequent periods. The Company’s management has duly considered
the impact of such existing and new retail motor policies impacted by the Circular on claims in the
current estimate of future contractual cashflows of the insurance contracts in force as at December 31,
2020 for its liability adequacy test. As a result, the Company has maintained a premium deficiency
reserve of Saudi Riyals 6.3 million on such policies as at December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019: Nil,
September 30, 2020: premium deficiency reserve of Saudi Riyals 5.7 million, June 30, 2020: additional
premium deficiency reserve of Saudi Riyals 9.7 million, March 31, 2020: Nil).

Financial assets - investments and loans and receivables

For held-to-maturity investments and financial assets designated as loans and receivables, the Company
has performed an assessment in accordance with its accounting policy due to the Covid-19 pandemic to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. These include factors such as significant financial difficulties of issuers or debtors, default or
delinquency in payments, probability that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, etc. For available-for-sale investments and at fair value through profit or loss, the
Company has performed an assessment to determine whether there is a significant decline in the fair
value of these investments to below cost along with other qualitative factors such as prolonged decline
in the value of investments for equity instruments and / or occurrence of a credit default event in case
of debt instruments. Based on these assessments, the Company believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has
had no material effect on the Company’s reported results for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
Company continues to monitor the situation closely.
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4. Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
(ii) Liability arising from claims under insurance contracts

Considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders
arising from claims made under insurance policies, Such estimates are necessarily based on significant
assumptions about several factors involving varying, and possible significant, degrees of judgement and
uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in
estimated liabilities.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the
date of statement of financial position and for the expected ultimate cost of IBNR claims at the reporting
date. The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims,
is that of using past claim settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions, if any, are estimated individually. Independent loss
adjusters normally estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred
and claims ineurred but not reported, on a quarterly basis.

The Company is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Company
monitors on a quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its reinsurers.

(iii) Impairment of premiums and insurers’ balances receivable and goodwill

An estimate of the uncollectible amount of premiums receivable, if any, is made when collection of the
full amount of the receivables as per the original terms of the insurance policy is no longer probable. For
individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which
are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and an allowance
applied according to the length of time past due and Company’s past experience.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated based on the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. In case, the receivable amount is less than carrying value, the
difference is charged to statement of income as impairment loss.

(iv) Impairment of investments

The Company treats investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, the Company
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted investments and the future
cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted investments. Also see Note 3.21.
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5. Segmental information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Company
that are regularly reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors in their function as chief operating
decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess its performance.

There have been no changes to the basis of segmentation or the measurement basis for the segment
profit or loss since December 31, 2019.

Segment results do not include general and administrative expenses, allowances for doubtful debts,
investment and commission income, changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss - net, realized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments, reversal of surplus distribution
payable and other income.

Segment assets do not include cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, premiums and insurers’
balances receivable - net, investments, prepaid expenses and other assets, property and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill, statutory deposits, accrued income on statutory deposit and, accordingly,
they are included in unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities do not include accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities, reinsurer’s balances
payable, due to a related party, employee benefit obligations, zakat payable, accrued commission income
payable to SAMA, dividend payable and surplus distribution payable and, accordingly, they are included
in unallocated liabilities.

These unallocated assets and liabilities are not reported to chief operating decision maker under related
segments and are monitored on a centralized basis.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their products and
services and has the following reportable segments:

- Medical

- Motor

- Property and casualty; and
- Protection and savings

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured
differently from profit or loss in the financial statements.

Where intersegment transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments are set on
an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense
and results will then include those transfers between operating segments, which will then be eliminated
at the level of financial statements of the Company.

The segment information provided to the Company’s Board of Directors for the reportable segments for

the Company’s total assets and liabilities at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, its total
revenues, expenses, and net income for the years then ended, is as follows:
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY N

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

5 Segmental information (continued)
5.1  Gross premiums written - categorization

Year ended December 31, 2020
Property and Protection

Medical Motor casualty and savings Total

Large corporates 22,773,012 10,293,085 35,378,362 - 68,444,459
Medium corporates 47,405,576 11,479,244 1,786,054 - 60,670,874
Small enterprises 81,129,019 5,888,050 5,008,216 - 92,025,285
Micro enterprises 55,984,897 578,926 499,323 - 57,063,146
Retail 2,221,827 95,752,404 2,935,663 - 100,909,894
209,514,331 123,991,709 45,607,618 - 379,113,658

Year ended December 31, 2019
Property and Protection

Medical Motor casualty and savings Total
Large corporates 87,775,115 12,488,023 19,231,531 - 119,494,669
Medium corporates 71,129,435 8,250,649 11,688,379 - 91,068,463
Small enterprises 130,804,281 5,628,391 1,122,011 - 137,555,583
Micro enterprises 52,269,692 1,410,017 466,371 - 54,146,080
Retail 25,524,840 23,584,347 4,328,779 - 53,437,066
367,503,363 51,361,427 36,837.971 - 455,702,761
6. Cash and cash equivalents
Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash in
hand 31,930 30,000 - - 31,930 30,000
Cash at
banks -
current
accounts 26,468,936 26,121,952 333,635 20,353 26,802,571 26,142,305
Time
deposits - 20,000,000 48,750,000 50,000,000 48,750,000 70,000,000
Money
market
fund 122,029,029 98.477.827 144,723.538 60,454,276 267,752,577 158,932,103

149,520,905 144,620,779 193,807,173 110,474,620 343,337,078  255.104,408

Cash at banks is placed with counterparties that have investment grade credit ratings. As at December 31,
2020, time deposits are placed with local banks and money market funds are held with financial institutions
denominated in Saudi Riyals with original maturities of less than three months from the date of placement
and earned commission income at an average rate of 0.70% to 2.70% per annum (December 31, 2019: 2.35%
to 3.35% per annum).
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY*

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

7 Short-term and long-term deposits

Short-term deposits are placed with local banks and financial institutions with an original maturity of
more than three months but less than or equal to twelve months from the date of placement. These
deposits earn commission income at an average rate of 2.86% to 4.31% (December 31, 2019: 2.45% to
4.80%) per annum.

Long-term deposits represent deposits with maturity of more than one year from the date of placement
and are placed with banks carrying commission income at an average rate of 2.70% to 2.90% (December
31, 2019: 2.79% to 2.98%) per annum.

Short-term and long-term deposits are classified under loan and receivables category for financial
assets, and are carried at amortized cost.

8. Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Premiums receivable 68,918,023 107,387,793
Premiums receivable from related parties (Note 17) 11,480,201 13,634,740
Receivable from insurance and reinsurance companies 19,715,565 10,093,743
100,113,879 131,116,276
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (36,275,368) (36,192,110)
63,838,511 94,924,166

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
At the beginning of the year 36,192,110 26,343,746
Charge for the year 83,258 9,848,364
At the end of the year 36,275,368 36,192,110

The aging analysis of premiums and insurers’ balances receivable at the year-end is set out below:

Premiums receivable:

Past due and impaired

Neither
impaired 91-180 More than 360
Total nor past due days 181-360 days days
2020 68,918,023 17,153,100 7,340,808 _8,570,199 35,853,916
2019 107,387,793 65,416,687 7,815,247 6,619,380 27,536,479
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY -

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

8. Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net (continued)

Premium receivables from related parties:

Past due and impaired

Neither
impaired 91-180 181-360 More than 360
Total nor past due dayvs days days
2020 11,480,291 3,974,449 3.847,483 1,991,206 1,667,153
2019 13,634,740 3,780,679 4,005,909 2,710,051 3,138,101

Premium receivables from insurance and reinsurance companies:

Past due and impaired

Neither
impaired 91-180 181-360 More than 360
Total nor past due days days days
2020 19,715,565 9,355,143 6,000,619 4,035,889 323,914
2019 10,093,743 5,724,749 273,318 123,518 3,972,158

Premium and insurers’ balances receivable outstanding above 9o days amounted to Saudi Riyals 74.6
million (2019: Saudi Riyals 56.2 million) against which a provision of Saudi Riyals 36.3 million (2019:
Saudi Riyals 36.2 million) was established.

Premiums receivable, balances receivable from insurance and reinsurance companies and premiums
receivable from related parties comprise a large number of customers, reinsurance companies and
related parties mainly within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company’s terms of business generally
require premiums to be settled within 9o days. In addition to that the Company is offering premium
settlements on instalment basis which are based on the total amount of policy premium. Arrangements
with reinsurers normally require settlement as per the reinsurance agreements.

Unimpaired premium balances receivable from insurance, reinsurance companies and from related
parties are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the
Company to obtain collateral over receivables and therefore such receivable balances are unsecured.

9. Deferred policy acquisition costs

2020 2019
At January 1 11,860,665 12,516,292
Incurred during the year 20,509,945 25,745,548
Amortised during the year (23,345,148) (26,401,175)
At December 31 9,025,462 11,860,665
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10. Prepaid expenses and other assets

Insurance operations

Shareholders’ operations

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Value added tax (“VAT”)
recoverable 5,240,483 4,079,224 - -
Receivable from Umrah
Fund 4,444,000 - - -
Deferred supervision fees 3,814,425 3,002,755 - -
Other prepaid expenses 2,621,127 2,564,397 - -
Receivable from Arab
War Risks Insurance
Syndicate 2,548,200 2,473,399 - -
Employees’ receivable 875,456 490,931 - -
Receivable from Manafeth
Fund 816,923 2,430,348 - -
Prepaid rent 281,088 474,262 - B
Bank guarantee margin - 1,000,000 - E
Accrued income 139,829 1,062,766 578,523 5,881,821
Other 587,771 547,487 265,367 50,906
21,369,302 18,125,569 843.890 5,932,727
11. Technical reserves
11.1 Net outstanding claims and reserves
Net outstanding claims and reserves comprise of the following:
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Gross outstanding claims 106,553,198 169,692,335
Gross claims incurred but not reported 76,121,056 63,180,565
Less:
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims (26,901,755) (70,047,887)
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported (12,002,373) (13,902,786)
Net outstanding claims 143,770,126 148,922,227
Additional premium reserves:
Premium deficiency reserve 14,025,166 17,314,969
Other technical reserves:
Non-proportional reinsurance accrual reserve 524,909 482,584
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 5,603,766 1,562,449
6,128,675 2,045,033
Net outstanding claims and reserves 163,923,967 168,282,229
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11. Technical reserves (continued)
11.2 Movement in net unearned premiums

Movement in net unearned premiums comprise of the following:

December 31, 2020

Gross Reinsurance Net
Balance as at the beginning of the year 230,733,866 (15,100,022) 215,633,844
Balance as at the end of the year 171,428,813 (18,949,044) 152,479,769
Changes in unearned premiums 59,305,053 3,849,022 63,154,075
Premium written during the year 379,113,658 (39,914,907) 339,198,751
Excess of loss premiums
- Foreign - (21,292,607) (21,292,607)
- Local = (3,738,264) (3,738.,264)
Net premium earned 438,418,711 (61,096,756) 377,321,955

December 31, 2019

Gross Reinsurance Net
Balance as at the beginning of the year 182,879,757 (12,851,688) 170,028,069
Balance as at the end of the year 230,733,866 (15,100,022) 215,633,844

Changes in unearned premiums

Premium written during the year
Excess of loss premiums

(47,854,109)

455,702,761

2,248,334

(32,475,269)

(45,605,775)

423,227,492

- Foreign - (32,259,289) (32,259,289)
- Local 3 (4,733,717) (4,733.717)
Net premium earned 407,848,652 (67,219,941) 340,628,711
12, Investments
a) Investments are classified as follows:
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations Total

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Held-to-
maturity
investments -

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or
loss 26,064,650

Available-for-
sale
investments

30,000,000 - 80,000,000 - 110,000,000

30,535,530 74,400,053 67,576,336 100,464,703 98,111,866

13,938,299 12,608,045 30,146,945 26,485,637 44,085,244 39,003,682

40,002,949 73,143,575 104,546,998 174,061,973 144,549,947 247,205,548
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12. Investments (continued)

b) Category wise investment analysis is as follows:
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Quoted 38,758,521 71,899,147 104,546,998 174,061,973
Unquoted 1,244,428 1,244,428 - -
40,002,949 73,143,575 104,546,998 174,061,973

c) The analysis of the composition of investments is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Mutual funds 100,464,703 08,111,866
Ordinary shares 44,085,244 39,093,682
Sukuks - 110,000,000
Total 144,549,947 247,205,548

Management has performed a review of the available-for-sale investments and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, to assess whether impairment has occurred in the value of these
investments. Based on specific information, management is of the view that no impairment is required
in respect of such investments. All investments are denominated in Saudi Riyals and United States
Dollars. As at the reporting date investments amounting to Saudi Riyals 100.5 million (December 31,
2019: Saudi Riyals 95.6 million) are denominated in United States Dollars.

d) Movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
At the beginning of the year 30,535,530 22,483,264 67,576,336 15,866,224
Acquisitions during the year - 18,750,000 285,113 49,875,000
Disposals during the year (5,198,676) (10,137,971) - (724,312)
Changes in fair value - net (381,612) (559,763) 6,538,604 2,559,424
Realised gains on disposal 1,109,408 ~ - -
At the end of the year 26.064.650 30,535,530 74,400,052 67,576,336
e) Movement in available-for-sale investments is as follows:
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
At the beginning of the year 12,608,045 11,082,765 26,485,637 21,947,001
Acquisitions during the year 33,622,654 21,976,091 9,368,427 10,574,902
Disposals during the year (33,633,515) (21,529,506)  (9,774,328) (10,037,156)
Unrealised gains 656,683 392,447 2,332,167 1,512,171
Realised (losses) gains on disposal 684,432 686,248 1,735,042 2,488,719
At the end of the year 13.938,299 12,608,045 30,146.945 26,485,637
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12, Investments (continued)

) Held-to-maturity investments are as follows:

Insurance operations

Security Issuer  Maturity
Financial
Sukuk institution 10 years

Shareholders’ operations

Security Issuer Maturity
Financial

Sukuk institution 10 years
Financial

Sukuk institution 10 years

g) Geographical concentration:

Profit

Location margin

6 months
SIBOR plus

Saudi Arabia 1.40%

Profit

Location margin

6 months
SIBOR plus
1.15%

6 months
SIBOR plus
1.30%

Saudi Arabia

Saudi Arabia

Amortised cost
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
- 30,000,000
Amortised cost
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
- 30,000,000
- 50,000,000
- 80,000,000

The maximum exposure to credit and price risk for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments at the reporting date by geographic region is as

follows:
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 30,411,589 61,358,045 30,146,945 106,485,637
Singapore 9,591,360 11,785,530 - -
United States of America - - 19,197,599 17,701,336
United Arab Emirates - - 55,202,454 49,875,000
40,002,949 73,143,575 104,546,998 174,061,973
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13. Property and equipment

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements equipment Computers  vehicles Total
Cost:
At January 1, 2020 4,364,741 3,730,919 5,599,545 517,800 14,213,005
Additions 85.105 280,662 722,586 - 1,088,443
At December 31,
2020 4,449,936 4,011,581 6,322,131 517,800 15,301,448
Accumulated
depreciation:
At January 1, 2020 2,959,806 2,353,067 4,288,013 468,480 10,069,366
Charge for the year 287,049 294,248 626,654 40,612 1,248,563
At December 31,
2020 3,246,855 2,647,315 4,914,667 509,092 11,317,929
Net book value:
At December 31,
2020 1,203,081 1,364,266 1,407,464 8,708 3,983,519
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements equipment Computers vehicles Total
Cost:
At January 1, 2019 4,084,878 3,474,646 4,898,391 517,800 12,975,715
Additions 279,863 256,273 701,154 - 1,237,290
At December 31,
2019 4,364,741 3:730,919 5,599,545 517.800 14,213,005
Accumulated
depreciation:
At January 1, 2019 2,660,613 1,943,689 3,685,010 426,854 8,716,166
Charge for the year 209,193 409,378 603,003 41,626 1,353,200
At December 31,
2019 2,959,806 2,353,067 4,288.013 468,480 10,060,366
Net book value:
At December 31,
2019 1,404,935 1,377,852 1,311,532 49,320 4,143,639

Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis based on the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Leasehold improvements 10
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4-10
Computers 4
Motor vehicles 4
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13. Property and equipment (continued)

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting date and adjusted, if appropriate. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the statement of income
under other income.

14. Intangible assets

Computer software

Cost: 2020 2019
At January 1 5,724,155 4,415,285
Additions 920,893 1,308,870
At December 31 6,645,048 5,724,155
Amortization:

At January 1 4,127,717 3,055,756
Charge for the year 654,344 471,961
At December 31 4,782,061 4,127,717
Net book value:

At December 31 1,862,987 1,596,438

Also refer Note 3.20.
15. Goodwill

The Company commenced its insurance operations on January 1, 2009. The Company’s General
Assembly approved on February 1, 2009 for the Company to enter into an agreement whereby it
acquired the entire business (net identifiable assets) of Al Sagr Saudi Insurance Company with effect
from January 1, 2009 at a goodwill of Saudi Riyals 39 million as set forth in SAMA’s letter in this respect
after completing the related procedures as required under SAMA’s letter on November 10, 2008. The
Company has later adjusted goodwill amount by reducing Saudi Riyals 13.5 million in line with SAMA
correspondence in this respect bringing it to Saudi Riyals 25.5 million. The Company has paid Saudi
Riyals 9.9 million during 2011 and Saudi Riyals 15.6 million in 2012 against goodwill to the shareholders
of Al Sagr Saudi Insurance Company.

As at the reporting date, impairment testing, based on expected discounted cash flows, was performed.
The assumptions used involve a considerable degree of estimation on the part of management. Actual
conditions may differ from assumptions and thus actual cash flows may be different to those expected
with a potential material effect on the recoverability of amounts. The key significant assumptions used
in the determination of expected discounted cash flows for the next 5 years are:

e Weighted average cost of capital of 13%
e  Gross premiums written at compound growth rate of 14%
e Long-term growth rate of 2%

Although management believes that the assumptions used to evaluate potential impairment are
reasonable, with a significant portion based on the actual performance achieved in the past, such
assumptions are inherently subjective.

Based on the assumptions made, the expected discounted future cash flows exceeded the carrying
amount of goodwill and accordingly no impairment has been recognised.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed and an increase from 13% to 14% of the weighted average cost
of capital and a decrease from 13% to 12%, and from 2% to 1% of the gross premiums written at
compound growth rate and long-term growth, respectively, have no significant impact on the result of
impairment tests.
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16. Statutory deposit

The statutory deposit represents 10% of the paid up share capital which is maintained in accordance
with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
SAMA is entitled to the earnings of this statutory deposit and it cannot be withdrawn without its consent.

In accordance with the instruction received from SAMA vide their circular dated March 1, 2016, the
Company has disclosed the commission due on the statutory deposit as at December 31, 2020 as an asset
and a liability in these financial statements.

17.  Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the
Company, and companies of which they are principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are
approved by the Company’s management and Board of Directors.

a) The following are the details of the major related party transactions during the year ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the related balances.

Transactions for the year Balance receivable (payable)

ended as at
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Shareholders
Gross premium written 14,517,568 15,007,513 - -
Premiums receivable from
related parties - - 11,480,291 13,634,740
Rent expense (1,174,472) (1,008,580) - E
Consultancy services (552,278) (1,102,733) - -
Reinsurance comimission
income 32,940 53,167 - -
Reinsurance share of gross
claims paid 194,301 160,753 - -
Reinsurance premium ceded (461,381) (616,228) - a
Claims incurred (2,315,154) (8,074,967) - a
Directors’ remuneration and
meeting fee (3,816,667) (2,173,111) (3,836,667) (2,203,111)
Gross outstanding claims - - (1,550,137) (3,449,927)
Reinsurance premium

payable - - (616,386) (390,273)
Claims handling expenses - = - -
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17. Related party transactions and balances (continued)
b)  The compensation of key management personnel during the year is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019

Salaries and benefits 11,754,884 9,350,629
Employee benefit obligations 561,775 533,250
12,316,659 9,883,879

c) Board of Directors fees for the year ended December 31, 2020 was Saudi Riyals 3.8 million
(December 31, 2019: Saudi Riyals 2.2 million).

d)  Dueto arelated party
Due to a related party represents amounts payable to Al Sagr Saudi Insurance Company (B.S.C).

e)  The transactions with related parties are carried out at commercial terms and conditions.
Compensation to key management personnel is based on employment terms and as per the by-laws of
the Company.

18. Zakat

a) Zakat charge for the year

The charge for the year for zakat is as follows:
2020 2019

Charge for the year 6,500,000 8,400,000

b) Zakatbase

The principal elements of zakat base are as following:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Opening shareholders’ equity 395,447,533 441,893,966
Non-current assets 137,670,009 151,743,716
Held-to-maturity investments - 110,000,000
Goodwill 25,513,750 25,513,750
Adjusted net loss (105,979,227) (39,861,306)

The difference between the financial results and adjusted net income is mainly due to adjustments for
certain costs based on relevant regulations.

c) Movement in the provision for zakat during the year

2020 2019
At January 1 45,730,348 42,270,521
Provision for the year 6,500,000 8,400,000
Paid during the year (5,372,830) (4,940,173)
At December 31 46,857,518 45,730,348
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18.  Zakat (continued)
d) Shareholding subject to zakat

The following is the shareholding percentage subject to zakat in these financial statements as at the end
of the year:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Shareholding percentage subject to zakat 100 100

e) Zakat assessments

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company received final zakat assessments for the years
from 2012 to 2018. Total additional zakat liability as per the assessments amounted to Saudi Riyals 36.3
million for such years. The Company had filed an appeal with General Secretariat of Zakat Committees
(high committees) against the assessments and in-parallel had submitted a settlement request with the
GAZT-Settlement committee. Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020, the GAZT-Settlement
committee offered to decrease the zakat assessments to Saudi Riyals 36.2 million, which the Company
did not accept and accordingly, intends to continue with the appeal filed with General Secretariat of
Zakat Committees (high committees). Management is of the view that GAZT will reconsider the
assessments and will allow for certain deductions from the zakat base, and believes that the level of the
existing provision of Saudi Riyals 46.9 million for zakat maintained by the Company is presently
sufficient to cover such uncertain zakat position.
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19. Accrued and other liabilities

Insurance operalions

Shareholders’ operations

December December December December
31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 31, 2019
Accrued commission 9,408,469 11,028,091 - -
Accrued excess of loss
premium 6,777,483 5,838,449 - -
Accrued supervision fees 1,803,839 1,790,799 - -
Accrued Najm fees 1,809,300 354,584 - -
Accrued professional fees 1,482,314 2,236,099 - -
Survey fee and other
charges payable 1,252,960 2,015,622 - -
Directors’ remuneration
and meeting fee payable
(Note 17) - - 3,836,667 2,203,111
Third party administrator
fee payable 611,727 2,939,067 - -
VAT payable - 141,328 - -
Accrued employee benefits 566,584 - - -
Other 2,260,612 2,680,765 21,128 26,128
26,063,288 29,924,804 3,857,795 2,229,230
20. Unearned reinsurance commission
2020 2019
At January 1 2,197,204 1,750,042
Commission received during the year 7,313,183 5,216,505
Cominission earned during the year (6,315,317) (4,769,343)
At December 31 3,195,070 2,197,204

21. Employee benefit obligations

21.1  General description of the plan

The Company operates a defined benefit plan in line with the Labour Law requirement in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. The end-of-service benefit payments under the plan are based on the employees' final
salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service at the date of their termination of
employment, as defined by the conditions stated in the Labour Laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Employees’ end-of-service benefit plans are unfunded plans and the benefit payment obligation are met
when they fall due upon termination of employment.

At January 1

Charge during the year (Note 26)

Paid during the year

Re-measurement (gain) loss on obligation

At December 31
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2020 2019
9,664,194 8,815,245
2,472,668 2,345,910

(1,104,454) (1,586,706)
(1,825,101) 89,745
9,207,307 9,664,194
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21. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

21.2 Amounts recognised in the statements of income and comprehensive income

The amounts recognised in the statements of income and comprehensive income related to employee

benefit obligations are as follows:

Current service cost

Interest expense

Total amount recognised in the statement of
income

Remeasurements

(Gain) loss from change in financial assumptions

Total amount recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

21,3 Key actuarial assumptions:

Discount factor used
Average salary growth rate
Retirement age

21.4 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

Discount rate
Increase
Decrease

Expected changes in salary
Increase
Decrease

Discount rate
Increase
Decrease

Expected changes in salary

Increase
Decrease
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2020 2019
2,097,772 1,877,020
374,896 468,890
2,472,668 2,345,910
(1,825,101) 80,745
(1,825,101) 89,745

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019

2.40% 3.55%

2.40% 3.55%
60 60

December 31, 2020

Percentage (%) Amount
Increase

(decrease)

+0.5% (472,504)

-0.5% 515,196

+0.5% 327,312

-0.5% (306,215)

December 31, 2019

Percentage (%) Amount
Increase

(decrease)

+0.5% (615,937)

-0.5% 679,465

+0.5% 512,826

-05% (474,050)
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21, Employee benefit obligations (continued)
21.4 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions (continued)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the employee
termination.

21.5 Expected maturity analysis

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10.7 years (2019: 13.37 years). The
expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post-employment benefits is as follows:

Lessthana Betweeni- Betweenz2-5 Over 5 years Total
year 2 years years
December 31,
2020 513,047 879,294 2,201,417 8,695,667 12,289,425
December 31,
2019 289,464 614,098 1,919,328 7,588,757 10,411,647

22, Share capital

The authorized, issued and paid up share capital of the Company was Saudi Riyals 400 million at
December 31, 2020 consisting of 40 million shares (December 31, 2019: Saudi Riyals 400 million
consisting of 40 million shares) of Saudi Riyals 10 each.

23. Statutory reserve

In accordance with By-laws of the Company and Article 70(2)(g) of the Insurance Implementing
Regulations issued by SAMA, the Company is required to transfer not less than 20% of its annual profits,
after adjusting accumulated losses, to a statutory reserve until such reserve amounts to 100% of the
paid-up share capital of the Company. This reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders
until the liquidation of the Company. Also see Note 1.

24. Basic and diluted loss per share
Basic and diluted loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss for the year by the weighted average

number of outstanding shares during the year.
For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019
Total loss for the year attributable to the shareholders (112,479,227) (48,261,206)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic
and diluted loss per share 40,000,000 40,000,000
Basic and diluted loss per share (2.81) (1.21)
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25. Surplus distribution payable

2020 2019
At January 1 44,432,361 45,807,585
Reversal of surplus distribution payable (9,187,005) -
Adjustment against insurance premium receivables from
policyholders and related parties (26,131) (1,311,025)
Paid during the year - (64,199)
At December 31 35,219,225 44,432,361

As per Article 35 of SAMA surplus distribution policy, the Company has written back unclaimed surplus
distribution payable amounting to Saudi Riyals 9.2 million for the year 2015.

26. General and administrative expenses

Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations

2020 2019 2020 2019
Employees’ cost 39,951,997 33,585,751 1,100,287 1,024,537
Professional fees 4,194,318 5,641,044 - -
Repairs and maintenance 2,979,781 1,534,448 - -
Rent 2,681,374 3,044,146 58,711 54,929
Employee benefit obligations (Note 21) 2,472,668 2,345,910 - -
Bank charges 2,419,889 1,410,780
Depreciation and amortization

(Note 13, 14) 1,902,907 1,825,161 - -
Utilities 1,211,619 1,059,733 = -
Promotion and advertising 1,151,006 403,432 5,563 17,306
Storage 1,095,650 1,177,617 - -
Communication 611,814 740,389 - -
Business travel and transport 497,678 534,308 - -
Stationery 179,097 628,187 9,427 33,062
Fee and subscription - - 329,466 416,205
Directors' remuneration and meeting fees

(Note 17) - - 3,816,667 2,173,111
Other 2,189,541 520,452 521,110 288,446

63,539,339 54,460,358 5,841,231  4.007,590

27.  Other underwriting expenses, net

2020 2019
Supervision and inspection fees 5,128,476 5,371,068
Customer enquiry expenses 3,898,000 2,843,111
Production incentives - (2,302,875)
Other 593,222 202,894
9,619,608 6,114,198
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28, Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction takes place either:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or liability, or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantages accessible market for the asset or
liability.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same or identical instrument that an entity can access at
the measurement date;

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for
which all significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
(a)  Carrying amounts and fair value

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets, including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation to fair value.

December 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at
fair value
Mutual funds - financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - 100,464,703 - 100,464,703
Ordinary shares - available-for-sale 42,840,816 - 1,244,428 44,085,244

42,840,816 100,464,703 1,244,428 144,549,947
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Sukuks - held-to-maturity

Total investments 42,840,816 100,464,703 1,244,428 144,549,947

December 31, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at
fair value
Mutual funds - fair value through
profit or loss - 98,111,866 - 98,111,866
Ordinary shares - available-for sale 37,849,254 - 1,244,428 39,093,682
37,849,254 98,111,866 1,244,428 137,205,548
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Sukuks - held-to-maturity - 110,000,000 - 110,000,000
Total investments 37,849,254 208,111,866 1,244,428 247,205,548

During the year, there has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3.
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28. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
(a)  Carrying amounts and fair value (continued)

The valuation of publicly traded investments classified under level 1 is based upon the closing market price
of that security as of the valuation date, less a discount if the security is restricted. Fair values of private
mutual funds classified in Level 2 are determined based on the investees’ latest reported net assets values
as at the date of statement of financial position taking into account the fair value of underlying investments
by the fund. The fair value of Level 2 fixed income investments and funds are taken from the holding
statements issued by the respective fund managers. Fair values of other investments classified in Level 3
are, where applicable, determined based on discounted cash flows, which incorporate assumptions
regarding an appropriate credit spread. Level 3 available-for-sale investment also comprises equity
investment of 4,444 shares of Najm for Insurance Services (Najm) (2019: 4,444 shares) and 80,000 shares
of Saudi NextCare (2019: 80,000 shares), respectively. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the investment
is carried at cost less impairment as management considers that the recent available information is
insufficient to determine fair value and the cost represents the best estimate of fair value in the current
circumstances.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits, premiums and insurers’ balances receivable - net,
reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, statutory deposit, accrued income on statutory deposits and the
financial labilities except employee benefit obligations are measured at amortized cost.

29. Riskmanagement
Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls
which uses the existing organisational structure to meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy
revolves on willing and knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic
plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company is exposed to insurance,
reinsurance, regulatory framework and financial risks:

Risk management structure
A cohesive organisational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor
and control risks.

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralised oversight of Board of Directors providing direction and the
necessary approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Senior management
Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals
within the Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit Department

Risk management processes throughout the Company are audited annually by the Internal Audit
Department which examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Company’s compliance with
such procedures.

The internal audit department discusses the results of all assessments with senior management, and
reports its findings and recommendations directly to the Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the
Company from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives,
including failing to exploit opportunities.

The risks faced by the Company and the manner in which these risks are mitigated by management are

summarised below:
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29, Risk management (continued)
Risk governance (continued)
29.1 Insurance risk management

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and
therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the Company faces under such contracts is the
occurrence of the insured events and the severity of reported claims. The Company’s risk profile is
improved by diversification of these risks of losses to a large portfolio of contracts as a diversified
portfolio is less likely to be affected by an unexpected event in a single subset.

Underwriting and retention policies and procedures and limits and clear underwriting authorities
precisely regulate who is authorized and accountable for concluding insurance and reinsurance
contracts and at what conditions. Compliance with these guidelines is regularly checked and
developments in the global, regional and local markets are closely observed, reacting were necessary
with appropriate measures that are translated without delay into underwriting guidelines if required.

The primary risk control measure in respect of the insurance risk is the transfer of risks to third parties
via reinsurance. The reinsurance business ceded is placed on a proportional and non-proportional basis
with retention limits varying by lines of business. The placements of reinsurance contracts are
diversified so that the Company is not dependent on a single reinsurer or a reinsurance contract.

Property (covered under property and casualty)

Property insurance is designed to compensate policyholders for damage suffered to properties or for the
value of property lost. Policyholders could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by
the inability to use the insured properties. Significant risks underwritten by the Company under this
class are physically inspected by qualified risk engineers to make sure adequate fire protection and
security is in place. Also, the Company tracks for the potential of risk accumulation.

Engineering (covered under property and casualty)

The engineering business includes long tail Erection All Risks (“EAR”) and Contractor All Risk (“CAR”)
policies and annual policies for Machinery Break Down (“MBD”), Plant and Machinery All Risk,
Electronic Data Processing, Deterioration of Stock and Business Interruption in conjunction with MBD.
The long tail EAR/CAR policies cover various projects for the whole project period. Selection of the risks
and proper underwriting are the criteria for this line of business. Significant risks underwritten by the
Company under this class are physically inspected to make sure adequate fire protection, security and
project management is in place. These are amply covered under the engineering proportional and non-
proportional treaties.

Motor
For motor insurance contracts, the main elements of risk are claims arising out of death and bodily
injury and damage to third party properties as well as that of insured vehicles.

The potential court awards for deaths and bodily injury and the extent of damage to properties are the
key factors that influence the level of claims. This risk is covered by per occurrence excess of loss treaties
that also covers involvement of more than one vehicle in an accident. The Company has well developed
risk acceptance procedures based on critical underwriting factors such as driver's age, driving experience
and nature of vehicle to control the quality of risks that it accepts. It also has risk management
procedures in place to control the costs of claims.
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29. Risk management (continued)
29.1 Insurance risk management (continued)

General Accident and Workmen’s Compensation (covered under property and casualty)

For miscellaneous accident classes of insurance such as loss of money, personal accident, workmen’s
compensation, travel, general third party liability and professional indemnity are underwritten. The
extent of loss or damage and the potential court awards for liability classes are the main factors that
influence the level of claims.

Marine (covered under property and casualty)

In marine insurance the main risk elements are loss or damage to insured cargo and hull due to various
mishaps resulting in total or partial loss claims. The extent of the loss or damage is the main factor that
influences the level of claims.

The insurance risks mainly emanate from Saudi Arabia. An arrangement has been made with reinsurers
through proportional and non-proportional treaties.

Medical

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of
type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across the
industry sectors and geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes
account of current health conditions, regular view of actual claims experience and product pricing, as
well as detailed claims handling procedures. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments
that can negatively impact the Company. The Company has reinsurance cover to limit the losses for any
claim to Saudi Riyals 60,000 (2019: Saudi Riyals 40,000) per person per year.

Concentration of insurance risk

The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major
concentration lies in medical insurance segment, which accounts for 55% (2019: 81%) of gross written
premium.

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same
geographical location. For flood or earthquake risk, a whole city is classified as a single location. For fire
and property risk, a particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be affected by a single
claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a
single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company
evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes
its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.

Since the Company operates primarily in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the insurance risks relate to policies
written in Saudi Arabia.

29.2 Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it
does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary insurer and thus a credit risk exposure
remains with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent that any reinsurer may be unable to meet its
obligations under such reinsurance arrangements. The Company minimizes such credit risk by entering
into reinsurance arrangements with reinsurers having good credit ratings, which are reviewed on a
regular basis. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finalization of any contract. Reserve risks are controlled by constantly
monitoring the provisions for insurance claims that have been submitted but not yet settled and by
amending the provisions, if deemed necessary.
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29, Risk management (continued)
20.3 Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive
provisions e.g. capital adequacy to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the
insurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise. In management’s
opinion, the Company has substantially complied with such regulatory requirements.

29.4 Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like political violence,
environmental and economical, atmospheric disturbances, natural disasters, concentration of risks, civil
riots, etc. The Company manages these risks through the measures described above. The Company has
limited its exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The table below
sets out the concentration of the outstanding claims and unearned premiums (in percentage terms) by
class of business at the reporting date:

2020 2019

Outstanding Unearned Outstanding Unearned

claims premiums claims premiums

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Medical 73% 90% 57% 65% 57% 88% 80% 86%

Motor 3% 4% 30% 34% 6% 9% 12% 13%
Property

and casualty 24% 6% 13% 1% 37% 3% 8% 1%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks
and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.

29.5 Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date relates to valuation of outstanding claims,
whether reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made
under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty. Actual results may differ from management's
estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess
the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in
market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used
to assess the extent to which external factors affect the estimates.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the
statement of financial position date and for the expected ultimate cost of IBNR at the statement of
financial position date. The details of estimation of outstanding claims including IBNR are given under

Notes 3 and 4 (ii).
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29. Risk management (continued)

29.6 Process used to determine assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended
to result in neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes
it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost
of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to
claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar
claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the
cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event
is available. IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried
out to estimate the size of the reinsurance recoveries. The estimation process takes into account the past
claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions, unearned
premium reserve and premium deficiency reserve would be sufficient to service the future expected
claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as of the statement of financial position
date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the
experience during the expired year of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable.

29.7 Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the reporting
date are adequate. However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the
claims liabilities provided in the financial statements. The impact on the total income of the changes in
the claim liabilities, net of reinsurance, is analysed below. The sensitivity to changes in claim liabilities,
net of reinsurance, is determined separately for each class of business while keeping all other
assumptions constant.

Impact of 10% increase in net claims on total income for the year is as follows:

2020 2019
Medical 12,079,895 13,144,909
Motor 1,660,618 1,313,531
Property and casualty 636,500 433,783
14,377,013 14,892,223

Impact of change in average claim cost + 10%
Medical 1,184,069 1,493,774
Motor 519,513 7,772
1,703,582 1,501,546

A hypothetical 10% decrease in claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would have almost equal but opposite
impact on net underwriting income. The sensitivity to changes in the most significant assumption, on
claim liabilities while keeping all other assumptions constant, on the Motor and Health segments is as
follows:

Impact on claim liabilities
Change in current year

ultimate loss ratio 2020 2019
Segment
Medical Increase by 5% (2,043,642) (2,340,228)
Medical Decrease by 5% 2,043,642 2,340,228
Motor Increase by 5% (1,011,082) (512,155)
Motor Decrease by 5% 1,011,082 512,155
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29. Risk management (continued)
29.9 Financial risk

The Company’s principal financial assets and liabilities are cash and cash equivalents, short-term and
long-term deposits, premiums and insurance balances receivable - net, investments, accrued income on
statutory deposit and reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims. The Company’s principal financial
liabilities are reinsurance balances payable, outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported,
accrued and other liabilities, accounts payable, dividend payable, surplus distribution payable and
amounts due to a related party.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risks (including commission rate risk, price risk and currency risk). The audit committee
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarized below:

i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the
maximum exposure to credit risk to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of
financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, credit worthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are
monitored on an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debits.

The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

The Company’s investment portfolio is managed by the investment committee in accordance with the
investment policy established by the investment committee, which is approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Company’s other financial assets are held with commercial banks and financial institutions with
strong financial positions and credit ratings.
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29, Risk management (continued)
29.9 Financial risk (continued)

i) Credit risk (continued)

The table below classifies financial assets between those relating to insurance operations and
shareholders’ assets, and these are further disaggregated based on the credit rating of counterparties:

2020 2019
Insurance operations’ assets
Cash and cash equivalents 149,497,975 144,599,779
Short-term deposits - 50,030,556
Long-term deposits 11,250,000 26,250,000
Premiums and insurers’ balances receivable 100,113,879 131,116,276
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 26,901,755 70,047,887
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 12,002,373 13,002,786
Investments 40,002,049 73,143,575
Prepaid expenses and other assets 13,777,206 11,593,224
353,546,137 520,684,083
Shareholders’ assets 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 193,807,173 110,474,629
Short-term deposits - 70,100,000
Long-term deposits 75,000,000 75,000,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets 578,523 5,881,821
Investments 104,546,998 174,061,973
Statutory deposit 40,000,000 40,000,000
Accrued commission on statutory deposit 5,573,503 4,753,639
419,506,197 480,272,062
Total 773,052,334 1,000,950,145
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29, Risk management (continued)

29.9 Financial risk (continued)

i) Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups
of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit

exposure. Approximately all of the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in Saudi Arabia.

The Company’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by classifying
assets according to the Company’s credit rating of counterparties. Based on such credit ratings,
investment grade is considered the highest possible rating. Assets falling outside the range of investment
grade are classified as non-investment grade (satisfactory) or past due and impaired.

Insurance operations’ financial assets as at December 31, 2020:

Non-investment grade

Investment Past due and
grade Satisfactory impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents 149,497,975 - - 149,497,975
Long-term deposits 11,250,000 - - 11,250,000
Premiums and insurers’ balances

receivable - 30,482,692 69,631,187 100,113,879
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding

claims 26,901,755 - - 26,901,755
Reinsurers’ share of claims

incurred but not reported 12,002,373 = - 12,002,373
Prepaid expenses and other assets - 13,777,206 - 13,777,206
Investments 26,064,650 13,938,299 - 40,002,949
Total 225,716,753 58,198,197 69,621,187 353,546,137
Shareholders’ operations’ financial assets as at December 31, 2020:

Non-investment grade
Investinent Past due and
gsrade Satisfactory impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents 193,807,173 - - 193,807,173
Long-term deposits 75,000,000 - - 75,000,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets - 578,523 - 578,523
Investiments 74,400,053 30,146,945 - 104,546,998
Statutory deposit 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
Accrued commission on statutory

deposit 5,573,503 7 - 5,572,503
Total 388,780,729 30,725,468 - 419,506,197
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29. Risk management (continued)

29.9 Financial risk (continued)

i) Credit risk (continued)

Insurance operations financial assets as at December 31, 2019:

Non-investment grade

Investment Past due and
grade Satisfactory impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents 144,599,779 - - 144,599,779
Short-term deposits 50,030,556 - - 50,030,556
Long-term deposits 26,250,000 - - 26,250,000
Premiums and insurers’ balances

receivable - 74,922,115 56,194,161 131,116,276
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding

claims 70,047,887 - - 70,047,887
Reinsurers’ share of claims

incurred but not reported 13,902,786 B - 13,902,786
Prepaid expenses and other

assets - 11,593,224 - 11,593,224
Investments 60,535,530 12,608,045 - 73,143,575
Total 365,366,538 99,123,384 56,194,161 520,684,083

Shareholders’ operations financial assets as at December 31, 2019:

Non-investment grade

Investment Past due and
grade Satisfactory impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents 110,474,629 - - 110,474,629

Short-term deposits 70,100,000 - - 70,100,000

Long-term deposits 75,000,000 - - 75,000,000

Prepaid expenses and other assets - 5,881,821 - 5,881,821

Investments 147,576,336 26,485,637 - 174,061,973

Statutory deposit 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
Accrued commission on statutory

deposit 4,753,639 - x 4,753,639

447,904,604 32,367,458 - 480,272,062
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

29. Risk management (continued)
29.9 Financial risk (continued)
ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

For the purpose of the financial assets and liabilities, non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities
amounting to Saudi Riyals 7.9 million and Saudi Riyals 1.9 million, respectively (2019: Saudi Riyals 6.5
million and Saudi Riyals 1.8 million, respectively) have been excluded from prepaid expenses and other
assets and accrued and other liabilities, respectively.

iii) Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market commission rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Company to cash
flow commission risk, whereas fixed rate instruments expose the Company to fair value commission rate
risk.

The Company is exposed to commission rate risk on certain of its term deposits and investments. The
Company limits commission rate risk by monitoring changes in commission rates in the currencies in
which its investments are denominated.

An increase or decrease of 10% in interest yields would result in a change in the income for the year of
Saudi Riyals 1.0 million (2019: income of Saudi Riyals 2.1 million).
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

29, Risk management (continued)
29.9 Financial risk (continued)

iiti) Commission rate risk (continued)

The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Commission bearing

Less than 1 Above 1 Effective rate Non-commission
2020 year year (%) bearing Total
Insurance operations
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 123,029,039 - 1.13% 26,500,866 149,529,905
Long-term deposit - 11,250,000 2.78% - 11,250,000
123,029,039 11,250,000 26,500,866 160,779,905

Available-for-sale

Investments - = = 13,938,299 13,938,299
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss - - - 26,064,650 26,064,650
December 31, 2020 123,029,039 11,250,000 - 66,503,815 200,782,854
Commission bearing
Less than 1 Effective Non-commission
year Above 1 year rate (%) bearing Total
Shareholders’
operations
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 193,473,538 - 1.67% 333,635 193,807,173
Long-term deposits - 75,000,000 2.88% - 75,000,000
Statutory deposit - 40,000,000 2.05% - 40,000,000
193,473,538 115,000,000 333,635 308,807,173

Available-for-sale

investments - - - 30,146,945 30,146,945
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss = = - 74,400,053 74,400,053
December 31, 2020 193,473,538 115,000,000 - 104,880,633 413,354,171
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
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29,

Risk management (continued)

29.9 Financial risk (continued)

iit)

2019

Insurance operations
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Long-term deposit

Available-for-sale
investments

Held-to-maturity
investments

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

December 31, 2019

Shareholders'
operations

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term deposits

Long-term deposits

Statutory deposit

Available-for-sale
investments

Held-to-maturity
investments

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

December 31, 2019

iv) Price risk

Commission rate risk (continued)

Commission bearing

Less than1

Above 1 Effective Non-commission

year year rate (%) bearing Total
118,477,827 = 2.85% 26,151,952 144,629,779
50,030,556 - 3.62% - 50,030,556
- 26,250,000 2.8% - 26,250,000
168,508,383 26,250,000 26,151,052 220,910,335
- - - 12,608,045 12,608,045
- 30,000,000 4.20% - 30,000,000
= - 30,535,530 30,535,530
168,508,383 56,250,000 = 69,295,527 294,053,910
Commission bearing

Less than 1 Above 1 Effective Non-commission
year year rate (%) bearing Total
110,454,276 = 2.85% 20,353 110,474,629
70,100,000 - 3.6% - 70,100,000
- 75,000,000 2.97% - 75,000,000
- 40,000,000 3.21% - 40,000,000
180,554,276 115,000,000 20,353 295,574,629
: = = 26,485,637 26,485,637
- 80,000,000 4.18% - 80,000,000
E s = 67,576,336 67,576,336
180,554,276 195,000,000 - 04,082,326 469,636,602

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

29. Risk management (continued)
29.9 Financial risk (continued)
iv) Price risk (continued)

The Company has unquoted equity investments carried at cost where the impact of changes in equity
prices will only be reflected when the investment is sold or deemed to be impaired and then the
statement of income will be impacted.

The Company's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments are
susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty about the future value of investment securities.
The Company limits market risk by diversifying its equity investment portfolio and by actively
monitoring the developments in equity and money markets.

The impact of a hypothetical change of a 5% increase and 5% decrease in the market prices of
investments on the Company's total comprehensive income for the year would be as follows:

% Change in equity price 2020 2019
+5 7,165,276 6,798,056
-5 (7,165,276) (6,798,056)
v) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates in the normal course
of its business. The Company did not undertake significant transactions in currencies other than Saudi
Riyals and United States Dollars, during the year. As the Saudi Riyal is pegged to the United States
Dollar, balances in United States Dollars are not considered to represent significant currency risk.

29.10 Capital management risk

The objectives set by the Company to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
objectives and maximize shareholders’ value are:

. To comply with the insurance capital requirements as set out in the Law on Supervision of
Cooperative Insurance Companies. The Company’s current paid-up share capital is in
accordance with Article 3 of the Law;

. To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
. To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately

with the level of risk.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required
capital levels on a regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in
market conditions and risk characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with the externally imposed
capital requirements during the reported financial period.

As per Article 66 of the SAMA Regulations, the Company shall maintain a solvency margin equivalent
to the highest of the following three methods:

. Minimum capital requirement of Saudi Riyals 100 million;
. Premium solvency margin; or
. Claims solvency margin.
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AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY R

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

29. Risk management (continued)
29.10 Capital management risk (continued)

The Company’s management, through various scenario analyses as required by SAMA, has assessed the
potential impact of Covid-19 on the Company’s solvency margin by performing stress testing for various
variables such as gross premium growth, increase in employee cost, year-to-date loss ratios, outstanding
premium provisions, etc. and the related impact on the revenue, profitability, loss ratios and solvency
ratios. The Company’s management has concluded that, based on the stress testing performed, the
solvency margin of the Company was 179% as at December 31, 2020 (As at December 31, 2019: 170%).
As the situation is fluid and rapidly evolving, the Company will continue to reassess its position and the
related impact on a regular basis.

80



23]

008‘T6S‘620T  QIL‘Q9EQ°G0S TQ0‘SELETS TeI‘TOO‘VOg VIESge St LOQSTILQSE
(L3P 6LV°LY) - (LeVt'6l¥’LS)  (E6F66%°Cor) - (g6t°66¥°torn)
LTTUTLOLROT  Q1L°9E€8°S0S 60Svee1gS  Pr9‘00S‘Lo6 bigiSgzStb 008‘S18‘e9t
LaV*6LV°LS - LeF6LY LS get‘66t°Cor - c6F°66T°Co1
6S9°CSLY 6£9€SLY - €0E¢ELE S €0GCLES -
000‘000‘0F 000‘000‘0Y - 000‘000‘0Y 000‘000‘0V -
064€159°Ge 06L‘C19‘Ge - 0SL‘E1S¢Se 0SL‘C1S‘Cg -
8eP‘965T - {er965T L86‘398‘T - L86‘c9g‘T
6€9‘Ch1v - 6S9‘ch1y 615‘€g86°C - 615°€86°C
000‘0Sz‘T0T 000°000°G4 000°052‘92 000°0S2‘98  000°000°S.L 0000531t
963‘gG0‘tg LzlT86 S 69SGeT'g1 c61‘Cre‘es 06g8‘ctg 308‘69%‘1T
000‘000‘0TT 00000008 000‘000°0€ - - -
998‘TIT‘Q6 9£88‘9LS‘Lg 0€5°GEG‘0E €olbot‘oor ESo‘ootbi 059909z
3R9‘C60°6S FAN R Fo] Lot Sho‘gog‘et Pra‘Sgottr Sr6‘obr‘o€ 662‘gE6CT
S99°098‘TT - G99‘098‘1T 29t‘G20‘6 - 29t°G20‘6
98L‘c06C1 - 98L°T06°CT €LE 3003t - €LE‘B00‘TT
Lgg‘Ly 0oL - £8Q]‘LYo‘OL CCLT069T - CCLT069T
2T0‘00T1‘ST - 3T0‘00T°GT Pro‘6t6‘gr - tYo‘6t6¢gr
991'Ve6V6 - 991'V36‘V6 116‘gE]°C9 - T1S‘€8°C9
99S‘oCr‘0o2T 000°001°0L 95508008 - - -
gob‘bo1‘SSe 6z9‘vLb o1t 6LL689PP1 QLOLEEEYE EL1'LOG E6T S06°63S‘6P1
eioxL suonerado suonersado [e10L suonetado suonjerado
SIIpIoyaaeys dueansuj SIIPIOYIIRYS IdUBINSUL

6103 ‘1€ JqUId0ag

0203 ‘TS JaqUIddI(Q

SLASSV TVILOL

uoneururd suonesado-1a1ut :Ssa]
SLASSV TVIOL

suonjeiado SISP[OYIBYS WO anp SJUNOWY
usodsp A10111B]S U0 SWOOUI PITLIOY

usodsp Aroimelg

[Impoo)

s1asse a[qISuelu]

uawdmba pue fj1edoig

susodop uL}-3uo]

s19sSe 19710 pue sasuadxa predaid

S]USUIISAAUL AJLINJBW-01-P[9H

$50[ 10 1g01d ySno1yl sn[ea Irej 18 19SSk [BlouBUl]
S]USWIISAAUI J[S-10]-3[qR[IRAY

51502 uornusinboe Ad1jod paitsjeq

Ppo1iodal 10U Inq PaLINOUL SWIIR[D JO 2IBYS SISINSUINY
Swie[o SUIpULISINO JO 21BYS SIAINSUITY
swniwald paulesun Jo a1eyS SIoINSUDY

19U - 9[qRAIDAl Sa0UB[E( SISINSUL PUR SWNIWI]
sjisodep wI91-110YS

sjua[ealnba ysed pue yse)

SLASSV

NOILISOd TVIONVNIA JO INIIWALVLS

:smoJ[0] se suonetedo siep[oyaleys pue suoljerado adULINSUI 310q 10} pSO[oSIp A[91e1edas S18 SMO[J [SBI JO JUIWIE)S
pUE dWO0dUL SAISUSYaIdWod JO JUSWLIRIS ‘QUIODUI JO JUsWelels ‘uonisod [enuruy Jo Juawalels aYy ‘suolrensay Sunuswesdw] YNVS oyt 4q paimbai sy

uonewojul Arejuouddng ‘o€

(Pa1e1S 9SIMIBY]0 SSIUN S[RATY [pneg Ul passardxa sjunowe [[v)
0303 ‘1€ YIGWIIAA AAANT YVAA THL Y04 SINTWALVLS TVIONVNIA AHL OL SALON

(Aueduwro) }o01€ 1UIOf IPNES V)

ANVAINOD HONVINSNI HALLVIAd00D d9VS TV



28

LOTYPTVEg  61L°L0OTHS QrS'oe6'6LS P9QQIBQTY  60ETQLILS [{SfR % A3t 4
(LaV6LVLS) (Lev 6LVLS) - (€6°66v°Cor) (cob 66hcor) -
$69'€20'169  9PI°LQO°TTI |rLi9e6 6Ll LSE'QIL6T9 208'C8T' 19T GGG GeEPgSt
198°GE P v - 198'cev' vy $3e'b1e 'S - $23'613°CC
Lzb 6Ly LS Leb6L¥LS - g6t‘66v‘Cor  g6V‘661°‘Cotr -
ShLoLE tA JALVAY - 13 AL YA €vLoLE -
9ot ‘L1v'S - gob LIbS €9916L°L - €99°16L°L
6£9°6SL Y 689°CSLY - €0G‘ELS S €08gLSS -
{ye‘0gLGy grcoCLSh - |IELSg‘ot |IGLEg‘9Y -
¥61'v99‘6 - ¥61v996 LOE‘LOT‘6 - LOELOT 6
+ 0SL‘GeTT 0SL‘gert - 0SL‘Cer‘r 0SL‘E3T Y -
€€0‘Sro‘e - gco‘Gvo‘c GLY‘geT1‘g - GL9‘g31‘9
696VTE LT - 696P1ELT 991‘Ggo‘b1 - 991‘STOo‘P1
G9S‘0QT‘€9 - G9G‘og81‘C9 98013194 - 9S0°‘131‘9L
ggeeh9‘69T - G€Ec69‘601 g61‘6SS‘g0T - g861°€CGS‘g0T
voz‘Lé1‘e - Yoz‘Lé1e 0LO‘S6T‘C - 0LO‘S6T‘E
998‘€EL‘08s - 99g8‘c€L‘0¢z  €rg‘gsb iir - Sig‘gstiil
1I8€EEG - TIQ‘6EES P60‘z0Ll'T - Y60‘c0l‘s
gho‘vS1‘ee 682‘6TT‘c vog‘te6‘6e £80°136°6T C6LLERE 88369003
e10L suonexado suonexado el suonerado suonerado
SIIp[OYdIBYS IdURINSU] SIIP[OYDTRYS ddURINSUJ
6103 ‘TC Iaquuddag 0303 ‘TE JaquuId23(g

SHILITIIVIT TVLOL
uoneurwrd suoneiddo-iaur :ss9]
SHILI'TIIVIT TVILOL

91qeded uonngrusip sniding
suore1ado 3ouBINSUI 0] NP SIUNOWY
2[qeAed puaplalq

9[qeded sunodoy

VIAVS 01 3[qeAed awiooul UOISSIWWOD PINIIOY
o[qeded 1eyez

suonesI[qo jauaq d40[dwy

Aured pajerpa v 01 angg

S9AI9SAI [BIIUYDD] YO

S9AT0S91 wnturald [euonIppy
pa11odal 10U INq paLInoul SWILe[)
swire[d SuIpueISINQ

UOISSTUITIOD SOUBINSUIDI PIULIBIU()
sunruald pauteaup)

d[qesed seoue[eq SIaInsuIRy
SOTU[IqeI] 1910 pUE PaNIIY
SHLLITIGVIT

(penunuod) NOLLISOd TVIONVNIA 40 INTAWALV.LS

(penunuod) uoneuriojul Areyudweddng  ‘0¢

{(pa1E1s 9sIMILYI0 sSa[un S[eATY [pnes ul passaidxe syunoure [[v)
0203 ‘T€ YHIWHOHAJ AANT YVAA THL Y04 SINTIWALY.LS TVIONVNIA HL OL SALON

(Auedwo) 201§ JUIofL IPNES V)

ANVAINOD HONVINSNI HALLVIFd00D dOVS TV



€8

008°165°620°'T 16T LYSE'QPY 60S'VE3 I8S  TST'TO0'POQ 188 °SQL IVE 00%°C1T a9t
(SN AZ 233 2L5'6PT Y68 196°262°T LST'eg8LlilgT s15°300‘F8s SPL6LLE
GeL'890°Y 0gz'eve'v 515928 $gSG°LS0'g L8E'PLS O |61°Eg8T'T
obbrly - obv iy L¥S‘963‘c - LYS‘96z‘s
(09QVEPLS)  (0SQVEVLS) - (GLg°‘1LS‘qar) (SL8‘1LS‘T3T) -

zozeheLy 20z eLy - - - -
ooo‘ooo‘cob  0oo‘000‘00t - 000‘000‘00t 000‘000‘O0Y -

®10L suonexado suonetado oL suonetddo suonetado

SIdp[oYyareys sourINSu] SIIp[oYaaIeyS PdDUueINSUl
6103 ‘1€ JoqUIddA(Q 0TO03T ‘IE JoqUIdd(Q

ALINOA ANV STLLITIIVIT TV.LOL

ALINOA LAN
B.ﬂoﬁﬂ.mv\wgw U0 9AI3S3I ®D~m> .Hm.m A

suonesiqo
1J2uq 3940[d WS JO AISAI JUSWIINSBIWY
sSuluies paurelay

9AI9S3I AT0IN3RIS
[eudeo axeys
ALINOA

(penunuod) NOLLISOd TVIONVNIA 10 INHINALVLS

(ponunuod) uoneurroyul Arejudur[ddng  ‘0¢

(pe3ess 9sIMIaY)0 ssofun S[eAry Ipneg Ul passaidxs syunoure [[y)
0303 ‘T€ YHIWIIAJ AAANT IVEXA THL Y04 SINFWALV.LS TVIONVNIA THL OL SALON

(Aueduwo) 203§ JUIOr IPNES V)

ANVAINOD HONVINSNI JALLVIAdO0D dDVS TV



¥g

(penunuo))
(Pvi‘egevzE) - (bVLege‘tet) (669‘€6L18) - (669°€6L¢18t)
(0L9°gg¥T) - (oLgo‘ggte) (E1P°006°T) - (€17°006°1)
(Pit‘ovo‘vz) - (Pit‘ovobe) (x6F‘ot6°sY) - (6ot 6¢ar1)
165+°QR6ST 15V‘gg6‘Ge  (e€r‘ogtr‘Edh) - (B€r‘ob1Cl)
(g6o‘zot‘g9z) - (860°29€‘9T) LETI6ET‘C9 - LET6E1°C9
(€SevLEL6T) - (€ScvLE°L6T) (00g‘SH6‘9t) - (00g8‘St6°get)
(6StG10ST) - (65¥°S10°GT)  (618°S€0°LT) - (618°S€0°L1)
68LV18°cE - 684v1g'ee P8I068°Cg - ¥81‘06€Cg
(ege‘eLrSIE) - (€85°¢L1‘G1E) (S91‘00E°S6Y) - (S91‘00£°S6Y)
¥S0°g6EGHE - PG0°'g6E°SPE TLILEY9EQYE - elz’L€9°EQT
cve69LY - EPe69LY L1ES1IE 9 - L1E°C1E9g
114‘g29‘obE - 114‘g29‘obe  SS6°1aELLE - GC6°13ELLE
7Ee°gbes - vEe'ghee 330°618°E - 330678
(6orvSgLy) - (601VSgLY) €S0‘G0E‘6S - €G0°‘S0E‘6S
ggbvCeoge - 98v‘F€298¢ 08K8LOTPIE - 088°‘LoT‘VIE
(L1L°CELT) (L1L°€CLY) (V9B QELE) - (t93°gEL E)
(6gT‘6Se‘TE) - (6g2‘652°cE) (L09°T6T‘T3) - (L09‘e63‘13)
(0TE64E°T) - (0256LET) (€99°G1H¢3) - (€99°G1t2)
(6¥L660°18) - (6vLG60°18) (YPz‘66tLE) - (Yras‘66¥<LE)
19420468y - 19LG0LGSY QS9°SIT6LE - 8S9‘CI1°6LE
[eioL suonetado suonesado TeI0L suonerado suoneiado
SIIpIOYDIRYS  doURINSUJ SIIp[oYaTeYS IdUBINSU]
610T 0T03T

PRIINOUT S]IJOUd( JOI0 PUR SWIR[D 19N
pauodal

10U J11q PALINOUL SWIR[D JO AIRYS SIINSUILI Ul saSuey)

po110dal 10U INq PALINIUL SWIEO Ul saguey)

swre[d uUIpuelSINo JO AIBYS SIDINSUIAI Ul Sa3ULY)

suwire[o Surpuelsino ul ssguey)

pred sijoua( I9Y10 pUE SWIED 19N
sasuadxa Surjpuey swire)

pred swred Jo a1eyS SIAINSUINY

pred suirepd ssoin

SASNHIXH ANV SLSOD ONLLIIMAIANN

SOMNUIAJI [el0],
SUOISSIWIUIO) QURINSUIIY

paoures sumiuaxd 19N\
swnwaxd PaILIEaun JO SI.YS SISINSUIRI U saSuey)
swniwald pawresun ui sauey)

uaLIM sumriuaad 1o N
[eo0T -
uSri0g -
swniurRad sso[ Jo sS90xY
[edooT -
uSal0g -
:papeo swiniweld soueINSuley
uanIM swniuraid ssoln
SHONIATH

TE YHIWHITA ATANT AVIA AH.L YO HINOINI 40 INTWALV.LS

(penurjuod) woneuriojur Areyjuowajddng ‘o€

(Pa1e1Ss 9SIMIAT10 SSa[un S[eARy Ipneg ul passaidxs sjunoure [[v)
0203 1€ YAGIWADAA IANT IVIA THL Y0d SINHWALV.LS TVIONVNIA AHL OL SHLON

(Aaeduwro)) }o01S UIof IpNES V)

ANVAINOD HONVINSNI JALLVIZd00D d4DVS TV



S8

(9o¢192'gl) (90%E‘19T‘gl) - ({326l err) (Lss‘6ivisrr) -

- (ProotoLS) Pro'obo°LS - (x€%c0e'S1T) 1EE'TOTCIT
(ootr9z‘gt)  QELPRLG (Pro‘oto'lS) (Lse6ivisir) bor‘€si‘s (1€€‘203°S11)
(ooo‘oot‘g) (ooo‘00b g) - (000°00%°9) (000°005°9) ~
(90E‘19Q68)  QELPQTLT (Pro‘obo'lS) (L33°6L6°C01) VOT1‘C€3T6 (1€€‘z03 SIT)
(T0€°QEY’LE)  QELPQTLT (680°€29PS)  (SIr'P90o°TE) Yor‘tss’e (618°L838°CT)

G12'0le'e - G12°0LT'T 069°Ser*'S - 069'SeI'S

L96VL1‘S 61LggV‘c |bvz‘9g9 vivort s 2bo‘SEL Y sev‘bgo

- - - S00°LQT‘6 - S00°‘LBT‘6

199°666°T beb69Sc (€94659) 266°9S1‘g P09‘g€sig (319°18¢€)

vL1GebCe 161vb1g1T £86°gg3‘L c9G‘orSeT 689°06L‘g €98‘61LS
(PS6°Lob‘gQS)  (965Lo0Y) (8S€‘09b1S) (045°08€°69)  (1€3‘1hgS) (6€£€6£5°C9)
(botgbg6) - (bot'gbg’e)  (8S3°€Q) - (8S3°€Q)
(oo Cete) - (So0'€er'c) (BTI1°616°1L) - (BIT°ST6°1L)
(6507Teg’LPE) - (6S0Teglbe) (¥Pger=seesh) - (Pgeessssty)
(gb1¥11°9) - (gb1'P11'g) (869°619°6) - (869°619°6)

PLg‘0gS‘T - PLg 0QS“T (st9‘€go‘t) - (st9‘€go‘P)

yg196CL - ¥gr96€°L €08‘683c‘C - €0g8‘682°‘¢
(Sir'1ot92) - (SL110¥93) (gtrsvees) - (gti‘sve€e)
®oL suonetado suonerado Teio, suonerado suonetado

SISPIOYaIeyS JdUBINSU]

SIIPIOYSIBYS IOUBINSUL

61032

0c0e

oyep
Jo Iaysue] JaJe Jea4 9] J10J SSO[ [BI0L

suonerado
SIOpIOYSILYS Y] 0) PIIIJSUBL 1Y

JTeak 9] JOJ dUI0dUT (SSOT) [e10L,
asuadxa jeyez

jeyez pue uonnqrme snidans
AJ0J9( IBIA 9] J0J UWIOIUI (SSO[) [B10],

19U ‘awrodur (sesuadxo) Sunerado Jatpo e1oOL
AuI0dUl IPYIO
SJUSULISIAUI 3[BS-10]-3[qB[TBAR UO UIES pazZi[eay
d[qeAed uonnqLnsip snjdins Jo [esIsadyg

19U — ss0{ 10 1jo1d y8noayl anfea
1] 1B S19SSE [eloueul JO dnfea Irej ul ssduey)
SUWI0OUT UOISSIUIUIO) PUL JUSUIISSAUT
$9SUSdXo SATIBIISIUIWPE PUE [BIoUSL)
S1qep [NJAqUOP I0] 0UBMO[[Y
HINOONI (SASNAIXH) ONLLVIIJO YIHLO

SSOT ONILIIMIHAN LIN

19U ‘sasuadxa pue s1509 SUNLIMIIpUN [B10],
19U ‘sesuadxs SunumIspun I8YiQ

S9AI9S3I [BILUTID) JBI0 Ul Sefury)

saAlese1 wniuald [euonippe ut sasuey)

$1500 uonusmboe Ad1[04

(ponunuod) ‘T YHIWHAOIAA AAANT IVHA HHL Y01 AINOINI 40 INTWALVLS

(penunuod) uoneurioyul Arejuswaddng ‘0€

(P213s 9SIMIOUI0 SSIfun S[RATY IPNES Ul passaidxa sjunowe [[y)
0303 ‘1€ YHGIWIDHd AHANT AVAX FHL Y04 SINTWALVLS TVIONVNIA THL OL SELON

(Aueduwo)) 201§ JutOf IpNES V)

ANVJNOD HONVANSNI HALLVIAdO0D dIVS TV



98

(12'1) (12°1) = (18'3) (18's) - areys xad sso| panpig
(12°'1) (t2'1) = (rg's) (rg'e) - areys 1ad ssof o1seg
(daeys aad
STeAry TpneS Ul passaidxd) axeys 1od sso'f
000‘000°0F  000°‘000°‘0F - 000‘000‘0Y  000‘000‘O¥ - saJeys
Surpue)sIno Jo Jaqumu 3Fersae pAYSIO
relorL suonerado suonerado [ejol suoneyado suonetado
SI9pJoYaIeyS dourINSU] SIOP[OYRIBYS JduRINSU]
6103 0T0T

(penunuod) ‘t€ YHIWHIAA AAANT YVAA HHL Y04 AINOINI 40 INTWILVLS
(penunuod) uoneurroyut Arejudurs[ddng  -0€

(Pa183s 9SIMIAY10 SSI[UN S[eATY IpTeS Ul passaldxa SJUNnoue [[v)

0203 ‘T€ JHIWHOHd AIANT IVIA THL Y01 SINTWALVLS TVIONVNIA THL OL SZLON

(Aueduro)) 201§ JUIOf IPNES V)
ANVAINOD HONVIANSNI FALLVIZd000D YDVS TV



L8

(EEP*gvboy)  (Ser'obiigp) TOLTOE (942°999°L0T) (090°‘LPT*OTT) vgLiigh s Jeak
9y} JOJ (SSO[) dWodUI IAISUIYIIduwIod [Bl0],
819°V06°T TL1°21S T Lyv*368 058°gg6's LOT°3EET €89°959 STUSWIISIAUL

3[BS-10J-9[(e[[BAR JO an{es IIe] Ul 9SUBYD JON

supafi jusnbasqns w1 awodUL JO JUNUWD]D]S
aYy3 01 paiyfissvpoaL 29 N DYl SWd)J

(SPL68) - (GPL6Q) TOT‘Ce]‘T - TOT‘Seg‘T suonesiqo
euaq safoidws uo (ssof) ule$ JUAWRINSBIUI-Y

supafi juanbasqns ul awodul fo NUNUIID]S
Y1 03 payfissppoad 2qQ J0U M IDY] SWI)]

:(SSO]) SW0dUT IAISUIYIdWOD IO

(9o0¢‘19g‘glh)  (90E‘19T°gh) - (Lgefolbierr)  (Lzz‘6it srn) - sIspioyareys
9U3 03 s[qeInqLIle 16 911 10] SSO] [B10],
eioL suoneaado suonerado [e10] suonetado suonerado
SISp[oYaIeyS IduRINSU] SIOP[OYDIRYS  IdURINSU]
6103 0T03

T€ YIIWADAA AAANT YVIA THL Y04 HINODNI HAISNTHTAINOD 40 INTWALVLS
(penunuod) uoneurnrojur Arejuswsddng ‘o€

. (Pa3e3s 9SIMIBY10 SSo[UN S[RARY IpNES Ul passaudxa sJUNowe [[v)

0303 ‘1€ YIIWAOHA AAANA YVAA THL 404 SINTWHLV.LS TVIONVNIL HHL OL SHLON
(Aueduro)) }o01S 1UIOf TPNES V)

ANVANOD HONVIANSNI FALLVIId00D YOVS TV



88

(penunuop)
£2396Qa‘T £e5Gge T - og618 Yog61g -
vii‘gbove - vit‘ovo‘vs 160t 631 - 16t‘ot6°sT
86029€‘gT - 86039893 (Lex‘br€rg) - Ler‘vrigrg)
[ 18444 - [{*18A24 998°L66 - 998°‘L66
(bPL€eSe) - (rieese) (L1l1€9¢T) - (L1l1€9°T)
[7A 2 1al] (68¢€) 1981SV‘g (01T‘190°1) 9SS‘g39‘t (999°689°3)
(Sgc‘eshe) (942°SS85‘2) 16Q‘10T Yor‘srgr LEQ‘gQ0°S (€8LEbz‘E)
£g9‘SS9 - Lz29‘SSq €03‘CEg‘s - €03‘CEg‘s
- bvo‘gbo LS (ProobocLS) - SIL‘CTO‘Q9T  (STILETO‘gQT)
- (beliotot) Yelioto‘y - (LP9‘C66°12T) LY9‘€66°TTI
0L9‘ggt‘s - 0L9‘ggl‘e €1v‘oo6‘x - €it‘oo6‘x
(15+gg6°Se) - (1S¥gQ6°Se) ser‘obr‘cy - sCr‘gbr‘ey
(vee ‘gz e) - reeghee) (sc0‘6¥8¢€) - (sso0‘6vgc)
(949628 11) - (9L9°62g8°1T) o1t°6L6Le - o1tv‘6L6°LT
601bSgLY - 601‘VSQ LY (€So‘So€‘6S) - (€S0°C0E‘6%)
- - - (S00‘LgT‘6) - (S00°L8T°6)
Pocgbg6 - t9g‘ghg6 8S3‘Eg - 8%c‘Eg
(got“601°‘1) - (gov“601°1)
(L96‘VL1‘E) (614‘ggb*T) (8¥2‘989) iveertvs) (ebo‘Ge€ir) (sev‘rg9)
(199‘666°1) (bet6SSe) £9L°65S (866¢9S1‘9) (Y0o9‘g€S9) 3I9‘18S
016‘StE°g - 016‘GHEe 899°‘cL¥‘e - 899°sLlb ‘e
196‘TLY - 196“1LY YrevSo - 1428 2'1°)
00g‘6SET - 0028‘6SE T £9S‘ghs‘x - £9S‘gtz‘t
(90€1986€) (90€‘198°6€) - (L32°646°Co1) (L3T6L6°COT) -
e, suonjerado suonerado re1o], suonetdado suonesado
SI9p[oYadeyS ddUurINSU] SI9p[oYyIeyS SouBINSU]
6103% 030%

VINVS 01 9[qeded swiooul UOISSIUIWOD PINIIIY
pa11odai 10U INq pa1InoUL SWIBLD
swie[o Surpuelsing
UOISSIWUIOD I0UBINSULDI pouleau[)
9[qeAed seoue[eq SIaINSUISY
SaNI[IqeI] 19Y10 PUB PaNIody
S]osse 19710 pue sesuadxs predaig
$1800 uonisinboe Ao1jod paiidjaQq
suornjerado s1apjoyaieys 0} (WOIJ) SNp SJUNOWY
suorjerado souerInsul (01) WOL NP SJUNOWY
Ppa110dad 10U INQG PaLINOUL STHIBD JO 31BYS SI2INSUIY
swire[o SUIPUBISINO JO 9IRS SIAINSUISY
swniwa1d pouleaun JO dIBYS SISINSUINY
19U - 9[qBAISDAI SI0UR[R] SISINSUL PUR SWNIWA1J
swnrweid paulesu)
ISONI[Iel] PUE S]9SSE sunedado Ul sosuey)
o[qeded uonnquusip snjdins Jo [es1aady
S149P [JIQNOP JI0J OUBMO[[Y
ssof 10 1goid ySnoayy
SN[BA IIE] JE S19SSE [BIOURUL] UO UIBS PazI[eay
SIUSUIISOAUL S[BS-10]-3[(B[lBAR UO UTES PazZI[edy
sso[ 10 1go1d ySnoay;
SM[eA I1e] 1 S19SSE [BIOURUIJ JO 9N[BA 1IB] Ul SS8uRY)
Suones1{qo 1ysuaq 2240jduwe 10} UOISIAOL
S19sse 9[qiSur)ul JO UONBZILIOWY
1uswdinbs pue Aursdoad jo uonjerardsq
:SUIS]T SBo-UO0U I0] SJUSWISnlpy

1eyez pue uonnguie snidins 210Jaq 1eak Sy} 10§ SSO[ [B10L,
SHILIALLDV ONILVIHdO WNOYd SMOT4d HSVD

T YHIWIOAU AIANT AVAX FHL YOI SMOTI HSVO 40 INTFWALVLS

(penunuod) uonjeuriojut Arejudwa[ddng ‘0€

(Pa1e1s asIMIRYI0 SSafUN STBARY Ipneg ur passaudxo SyUnowe [[v)
0203 ‘1€ JAGWHOHA CIAANT ¥VIX THL YOI SINHWALVLS TVIONVNIA FHL OL SZLON

(Aueduro) 01§ yutop IPNES V)

ANVAINOOD HONVINSNI HALLVIZAd00D YDVS TV



68

8ot Po1°GSe 629‘PLYOTT 6LL'639 V1T QLO'LEEEYE CLT°LOQE6T Co6°6zC61T
618°061°9gc 080‘69g‘0¢%1 6QL°L2T 95T got‘vor‘SSs 639‘vLitorr 6.LL639TPT
(1tb‘26€418) (1ob*b6.L6T) (010°g651T) 049°‘2E83‘g8 122 3 5] 931006V
(912eSF6h) (£56°€L0*1T) (652°6.E°gg) 189°1E9°LYe tz6‘00t 611 LSL°0%T‘]6
- - - 000°000°0TT 000°000°08 000°000°0€
- - - 000°000°ST - 000°000°ST
399‘99G°1E 9S1Lg0‘01 9056251 evrglot et 8TEVLL6 Cr1S‘€C9°ge
(€66°0552€)  (g06‘VLS0T) (160°946°12) (180°166‘ch) (L2P‘g9€ 6) (YS9‘229°€E)
(048‘80¢€°T) - (048°g0€*T) (€68°0T6) - (€68¢026)
(062°LEST) - (06e°LEe‘T) (erv¥°ggo‘r) - (ervggo‘r)
£8e‘g9g 01 c1Ebel 1L6¢LETO1 9L9‘g6T1‘C - 9L9‘Q6T1‘S
(000°G29‘g9)  (000°‘SLg‘6Y) (000‘054°gT) (8r16ge) (Sr1Cg8e) -
(€25°Gge1) (€25°SgeT) - (Yog618) (Yog618) -
(95€164°gSE)  (0ogoch00z) (9SS‘0€0‘gST)  (000°000°0%) - ' (000°000°09)
148°9LS 1LE 008‘03¢‘08e 120953 1t 9SS‘o¢r‘0LT 000°00T‘0L 9GS‘ogo‘o0T
S08'090°Qt 0556431 6vg18L 91 (r10°668°6ST)  (08€°‘890°99) (T€9°0EET6)
(661°%9) - (66179) - - =
(EL10V6D) (EL10b6Y) - (0€8°3L8°S) (088°3L8°S) -
(904°985‘1) - (904985°T) rsrvorr) - svvor‘r)
(PLg‘085‘T) - (bLg‘0gS5‘T) sto‘€go‘y - sbo‘ego‘t
(P81°96€°L) - (Yg1968€°L) (€08‘688‘¢) - (€08°685‘€)
G61°g6 - G61°'g6 LS3‘VLE T - LG3VLEe
e10L suonerado suonerado [e10 suonetado suonerado

SIIp[OYaIRYS IIUBINSU]

SIOP[OYaTRYS IdURINSUL

6102

0c0gc

Ied4 3] JO pus ‘sjuaeanbs yseo pue yse)
1eaf a1 jo Sutuurdeq ‘syuereamba ysed pue yse)
sjus[eAlnbs yseo pue yses ul aSueyo 19N

sanIAnO®R

SunsoAur (Ul paZIi[n) WO.IJ PA1BISUIS ysed JoN
SIUSUIISAAUL

Aunyeur-03-p[ay jo resodsip woy spasdoid

susodsp wisl-3uof jo uonepinbry
SIUSWIISIAUL

9[es-10]-9[qe[IRAR JO [BSOdSIp W01 SPA2V0IJ

STUSWIISSAUI S[BS-10]-3[(B[IBAR JO ISEYIINJ

s1esse 9[qISuelul Jo ISLYIINJ

1uswdmbas pue Li1edoad jo aseyoing
$501 10 31jo1d y3noayy

9N[eA IIBJ J S198SE [BIDURBUL] JO [BSOdSIp U101] Spaanolg
S0 10

1goad y3noaty anfea Iiej I8 S19SSe [BPRURUL JO ISLYIIN

awooul uoIssIuwod jisodsp A101nieig

s11s0dap ULIS] 110US U SIUOWRIR[]

s11sodop uLIsl-110ys jo uonepmbry

SHLLIALLDV ONILSIANI WOdd SMOTd HSVD

senIAnoe
Suneaodo woay pajerauas (UL PaZIjuin) Ysed 1N
s1ap[oyAoijod 03 ajqeded uonnquisip snpding
pied 1exez
pred suonesiqo jeuaq sakodwy
S9AI3SAI [BIIUYDS) IO
seAT9seI Intuwiald [BUOIIPPY
91qeded sjunoooy

(ponunu0d) ‘T€ YHAWHOHAA AAANHT IVHA THL 401 SMOTA HSVD 40 INTIWALVLS

(penunuod) uoneurrojur Arejuau[ddng ‘o€

(PoTe1S 9SIMISII0 SSIfUN S[RATY IPNES Ul PIssaidxa SYUNOWE [[v)
0303 ‘1€ YHIWADAd AIANHT YVAA THL YO SINIWALVLS TVIONVNII THL OL SZLON

(Auedwo) Y2015 1uTOr IPNES V)

ANVJINIOD HONVIANSNI HATLVHIAd00D dDVS TV



06

(SvL6g) - [CZA)) TOT*'SS8‘TY - T0T°S28‘T

- - - 000°‘Seg‘T - 000°'S3g8‘T

LS T80T E TlS'Tg0'T 0SQ TLT'T - 0SQTLIT

009898 = 009298 = = -

Y158 - g1ty = & -

JHAS T - LLz'EoE 18193 - I51'9%

819°706°T TLT2IST LbY26E 058°g86‘c Lo1‘cECE £89°959

1°10L suonerado suonjesado oL suonjexado suonjexado
SIIPOYdaRYS doUBINSU] SIIpIOYdaeyS doueINSU]

61032

0T0c

suonesiqo

Jjousq 99£0[dws UO $SOf (Ures) JUSWSINSBIW-Y
W}
onp swie SuIpueIsINo YSNOodi} J9p[oyaIeys

B WOLJ 3[qeAIe0a1 winwedd Jo JUsUIa[Iles
Way} 03 ANP 1UaI YSNoIy3 Ip[OYIRYS

B WOIJ 9[qRAIeda winiwald Jo Juswa1es
umruaid pauIesun uo [qeAIedal

LVA 1sureSe paisnlpe s[qeded uonnqrnstp sniding
sonaed
Pa18[51 WO S[QBAIR03I WNTwidld 30uBINSUI

1surede paisnipe sjqeded uonnqunsip snjding
saspoy4orjod
woIJ 9[qeAl0al winTuwrald soueInsul

1surede paisn(pe sjqeded uonnquusip snjding
SIUSWISaAUL

9]BS-I10]-9](B[[BAR I0] SAISSAI an[BA le] ul 93uey)

(ponunuod) ‘T€ YAAWHIHA AHANA YVIX THL Y04 SMOTA HSVD 10 INTFINALVIS

(penunjuod) uoneunioyul Arejudtus(ddng ‘o€

(pa7e1s 9SIMI9Y0 ssafun STeARY IpNeg Ul passaidxs spunowe [[v)
0203 1€ YAGWIOHd CAANT IVIA THL Y04 SINFWALVLS TVIONVNIA HHL OL SZILON

(Auedwo) 203§ UTOr IPNES V)

ANVAINOD HONVIANSNI HALLVIAd00D d9VS TV



AL SAGR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

31. Commitments and contingencies

a)  Legal proceedings

The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course
of business relating to policyholders’ insurance claims. While it is not practicable to forecast or
determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe
that such proceedings (including litigations) will have material impact on the Company’s results or
financial position.

b)  Capital commitments

At December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding commitment of Saudi Riyals 3.3 million in respect
of purchase of investments relating to a mutual fund (December 31, 2019: Saudi Riyals 3.6 million).

32. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 15 Shaaban 1442H
(corresponding to March 28, 2021).

91



